
What is the dispute with NSM?

No bank foreclosure was ever initiated on the Hansen DOT

NSM recorded and filed false claims

NSM did not produce ANY evidence to support its claims

The real owner of the Hansen DOT would have supported Tobinʼs efforts to void the sale so the DOT would not 

have survived as it the sale had never happened. The HOA wrongly foreclosed, but not without Nationstas assistance.

NSM does not hold the original Hansen promissory note.

NSM 258-259 is a COPY of the Hansen promissory note that Nationstar entered into the record to trick the Court

NSM 260 shows no endorsement of Hansenʼs note to Nationstar or to ANY of the lenderʼs NSM claims assigned 

the note to Nationstar.
NSM has no proof that it ever owned the Hansen deed of trust or that Nationstar d/b/a Mr. Cooper had the

authority to reconvey the property to Joel Stokes two days before the quiet title trial.

The Clark County Recorderʼs Office Property Record shows NSM began recording conflicting claims on 12/1/14, 

>3 months after the HOA sale. NSM disclosures before the end of discovery included the false 12/1/14 recorded claim that NSM

owned the DOT

NSM rescinded its 12/1/14 claim that BANA gave the DOT to NSM & 2 hours later recorded that Wells Fargo gave

the DOT to NSM NSM responses to Tobinʼ s request for documents & interrogatories reveal NSM "S lack of evidence

CONCLUSION: Nationstar was unjustly enriched by its covert deal with Joel Stokes at Tobin'S   expense

PARTY CONTACT INFO

M. Morgan Bar #8215 c/o Akerman, LLP, 1635 Village Center Circle, Suite 200, Las Vegas, Nevada 89134.

What is the dispute with NSM?

The dispute is over a $436,000 Western Thrift & Loan Deed of Trust (DOT) executed by Gordon Hansen on 7/15/04. 

NSM serviced the loan beginning on 12/1/13 on behalf of an investor NSM refused to identify. On 12/1/14, NSM recorded a claim

that NSM was owed the $389,000 balance that remained outstanding after the borrowerʼ s death. NSM̓ s opportunistic claim is provably
false.

No bank foreclosure was ever initiated on the Hansen DOT

Neither servicing bank, (NSM succeeded BANA as servicing on 12/1/13) foreclosed on the Hansen DOT
even though it was in default after Hansen died on 1/14/12.

Had NSM been the beneficiary of the DOT, it would have foreclosed or collected the debt by allowing

the property to be sold at fair market value. NSM did not record a notice of default on the Hansen DOT.

NSM did not allow the property to be sold to MZK for $367,500 on 5/8/14.

NSM did not complain when RRFS rejected its 5/28/14 super-priority offer of $1100 to close the MZK escrow.

NSM allowed the property to be sold for $63,100 while a $358,800 was pending lender approval.

 Nationstar Mortgage LLC
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Then, three months after the HOA foreclosed to collect $2,000 in delinquent HOA dues, NSM claimed that BANA gave 
NSM the Hansen DOT on 10/23/14.

NSM recorded and filed false claims

On 1/11/16, NSM claimed in its A-16-730078-C COMP that BANA gave the Hansen DOT to NSM on 2/4/11.

In its 3/2/7/17 OMSJ, NSM claimed that on 12/1/14 Wells Fargo had given NSM the DOT.

In February 2019, NSM could not produce any documents in response to Tobinʼs RFDs and interrogatories to prove 
any of its claims.

On 3/8/19, NSM recorded that it rescinded its 12/1/14 claim that it got its interest from BANA, and then two hours later 

recorded that it had Wells Fargoʼs undisclosed power of attorney to give NSM the authority to assign Wells Fargoʼ s non-

existent interest to NSM.

NSM did not produce ANY evidence to support its claims

NSM produced no proof that it owned the Hansen DOT during two lawsuits over the validity of the HOA sale.

All the evidence Nationstar entered into the record actually proved the opposite, but it was never subjected to judicial 
scrutinyNationstar.

The real owner of the Hansen DOT would have supported Tobinʼs efforts to void the sale so the DOT 
would not have survived as it the sale had never  happened.
Tobin and NSM were initially aligned to get the court to void the HOA sale until NSM learned that it would be impossible to 

foreclose on Tobin since Tobin had put it into the record that she had documents that could prove NSM did not have the standing 

to foreclose.

NSMs covert deal with Joel Stokes was solely to prevent the Court from conducting an evidentiary hearing that 

what have exposed that neither NSM nor Stokes could prove their claims.

The HOA wrongly foreclosed, but not without Nationstars assistance.

The banks could have stopped the HOA from foreclosing by recording a Notice of Default (NRS 116.31162(6)).

The HOA sale should have been cancelled when BANAʼs agent tendered $825 on 5/9/13 to cure the nine months that 
were then delinquent.

The HOA sale would have been avoided if the serving banks had not prevented four escrows from closing as escrows 

instructions were to pay the HOA whatever it demanded. The HOA sale would have been avoided if NSM hadnʼ t rejected the 

5/8/14 $367,500 www.auction.com sale to MZK Properties.

NSM, the servicing bank that is supposed to be a fiduciary, acting on behalf of the investor, turned a blind eye to an 

8/15/14 HOA sale for 18% of the $367,500 www.auction.com sale price that NSM had just rejected.

NSM does not hold the original Hansen promissory note.

NSM 258-259 is a COPY of the Hansen promissory note that Nationstar entered into the record to trick the Court
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NSM 258-259 is a COPY of Hansenʼs 7/15/04 promissory note.  

NRS 52.235 “Original required. To prove the content of a writing, recording or photograph, the original writing, recording or photograph is required, except as otherwise

provided in this title.”

NSM 260 shows no endorsement of Hansen s̓ note to Nationstar or to ANY of the lender s̓ NSM claims assigned the note to
Nationstar.

NSM does not have Hansenʼs original note, but NSM tried to conceal that fact by disclosing a COPY in NSM 258-259.

The copy of the note that NSM disclosed as NSM 260 does not have an endorsement to NSM.NSM compounded the deceit by misrepresenting unrelated business records in

NSM 261 (above)and 3/27/17 AFFD (below) to deceive the court.

3/27/17 NSM filed a DECL that misrepresents its servicing bank record to decive the court that NSM had no proof it owned the DOT

NSM has no proof that it ever owned the Hansen deed of trust or that Nationstar d/b/a Mr. Cooper had
the authority to reconvey the property to Joel Stokes two days before the quiet title trial.

EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 003 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0831
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TZhe disputed deed of trust was a $436,000 loan to Gordon Hansen by Western Thrift & Loan. 

A Deed of Trust (DOT) is a loan that uses a house as collateral. 

A DOT is different from a mortgage in that there is a Trustee in addition to the Lender and the Borrower. 

The trustee, not the beneficiary (party to whom the debt is owed), has the power of sale (conduct a foreclosure sale under the terms of NRS 

107080 if the borrower defaults. Gordon Hansen defaulted when he died on 1/14/12. Servicing banks (those that handle the paperwork on 

behalf of the “beneficiary”, the investor to whom the debt is actually owed) BANA & NSM recorded 11 claims regarding the Hansen DOT, 

but neither ever recorded a Notice of Default, the mandatory condition precedent to the trustee̓ s executing the power of sale. 

The dispute with NSM is not because NSM wrongly foreclosed on the Hansen DOT. 

The dispute is caused by both BANA & NSM obstructing multiple fair market value, arms-length sales, approved by the Hansen Estate, 

letting the HOA foreclose without notice for 18% of the $367,500 www.auction.com sale that NSM had just rejected, and then after the 
Hansen DOT was extinguished by the HOA foreclosure, NSM lied on the record about being owed the $389,000 outstanding 

balance on Hansenʼ s DOT. 

According to NRS 107.28, (2.)  A trustee under a deed of trust must not be the beneficiary of the deed of trust for the purposes of 

exercising the power of sale pursuant to NRS 107.080. 

The Clark County Recorderʼ s Office Property Record shows NSM began recording conflicting claims on 12/1/14, > 3 months after the 
HOA sale.

Nationstarʼs recorded false claims that it was the owed the $389,000 debt that remained unpaid after 

borrower Gordon Hansen died. The Hansen 7/22/04 DOT was extinguished on 8/15/14 when the HOA foreclosed. 

Nationstar and Joel Stokes were unjustly enriched by “settling” outside of court and preventing Tobins access to an 
evidentiary hearing that would have exposed their fraudulent claims.

NSM disclosures before the end of discovery included the false 12/1/14 recorded claim that NSM owned the DOT
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2/9/18 ICCR NSM 001-185 Identified, listed 1

2/7/19 1  SUPP DDW NSM 186-257 Attached 20

2/12/19 2  SUPP DDW NSM 258-403 Attached 103

2/27/19 3  SUPP DDW NSM 404-408 Attached 260

NSM ICCR AND 3 SUPP DDW Download

NSM rescinded its 12/1/14 claim that BANA gave the DOT to NSM & 2 hours later recorded that Wells
Fargo gave the DOT to NSM

DATE SERVED FILING CODE BATES # DOCUMENTS PAGES

3/12/19 4  SUPP DDW NSM 409-4013 Attached 15

190312 NSM 0409-0413 untimely Download

NSM responses to Tobinʼs request for documents & interrogatories reveal NSMʼs lack of evidence

NSM RESP RFDS ROGS Download

CONCLUSION: Nationstar was unjustly enriched by its covert deal with Joel Stokes at Tobinʼs expense
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Nationstarʼs claims are untethered from reality
The Reality

Nationstar had no recorded claim to own the beneficial interest of the Hansen deed of trust prior to the HOA 
sale. 

Nationstarʼs only un-rescinded claim was untimely, even if it hadnʼt also been unauthorized, invalid, and 
fraudulent. 

Nationstar is judicially estopped from claiming it was ever owed the debt secured by the Hansen deed of trust. 

Nationstarʼs and Jimijackʼs “settlement” concealed and misrepresented material facts from the Court so the trial 

to settle the quiet title dispute between the Gordon B. Hansen Trust and the Jimijack irrevocable Trust was a sham. 

Assignment of Hansen Deed of Trust recorded December  2014 was worthless

Nationstar executed in October 2014, and recorded in December 2014, the assignment of Bank of America̓ s, non-existent 
interest to itself. 

Nationstarʼ s claim was worthless for many reasons: 

Bank of America had already recorded that it assigned its interest, if any, to Wells Fargo in September 2014, alleging the assignment 

was effective immediately after the HOA sale, but the day before the foreclosure deed was recorded. 

Nationstar claimed to be Bank of America̓ s attorney-in-fact.

Nationstar did not disclose or record Bank of America̓ s power of attorney. 

There is no sworn affidavit, as mandated by Assembly Bill 284, Nevada̓ s 2011 anti-foreclosure fraud law, where the person 

executing the assignment, affirms under penalty of perjury, that the document is true, accurate, and authorized. 

Nationstar disclosed this worthless assignment, labeled NSM 180-181 over and over during the prior court proceedings, and 
repeatedly contradicted itself as to how, when, and from whom Nationstar acquired the beneficial interest of the Hansen 

deed of trust. 

Nationstar included it as an exhibit to both its pleadings where Nationstar a Plaintiff and a Counter-Claimant for quiet title. 

Nationstar falsely asserted in its 1/11/16 Complaint vs. Opportunity Homes that a nonexistent assignment from an 

unspecified entity was recorded on February 4, 2011 made Nationtar the beneficial owner of the Hansen deed of trust 

“during all relevant times”. 

I tʼ s 4/12/16 motion to intervene on the Jimijack case and its 6/2/16 Answer and Counterclaim against Jimijack also 
contain contradictions. 

The Court granted NSMʼ s 2/12/19 Limited Joinder to the HOAʼ s Motion for Summary Judgment against the Gordon B. 

Hansen Trust based on Nationstarʼ s unsubstantiated claim that it was Bank of Americaʼ s successor in interest as the 

beneficial owner of the Hansen deed of trust. 

Then, on 3/8/19 a week after discovery ended, Nationstar recorded a rescission of this false claim as if it had never 
happened. 

3/8/19 Rescission of its 12/1/14 Assignment of Hansen Deed of Trust

Nationstar executed and recorded the rescission of its false, unauthorized recorded assignment of Bank of America̓ s non-existent interest to itself. 

Nationstar employee Mohamed Hameed executed the rescission as the Vice-President of Bank of America 

Nationstar claimed to be Bank of America̓ s attorney-in-fact.

Nationstar did not have Bank of America̓ s power of attorney. 

The rescission was not accompanied by an appropriate sworn statement by the notary. 

Nationstar disclosed this rescission on March 12, 2019, as NSM 409-410. 

Nationstar proceeded with its 3/21/19 MSJ vs. Jimijack for quiet title on the false claim that Nationstar was Bank of America̓ s successor in interest as the beneficial owner of the Hansen deed of trust, 

and that the HOA sale was unfair to Nationstar because Red Rock had rejected the 5/8/13 tender of $825. 
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Nationstar continued to spew the fiction that the HOA sale was valid to extinguish the property interest of the 

Borrowerʼs estate, but not to extinguish Nationstarʼs non-existent interest.

3/8/19 Rescission of its 12/1/14 Assignment of Hansen Deed of Trust

Nationstar proceeded with its 3/21/19 MSJ vs. Jimijack for quiet title on the false claim that Nationstar was 

Bank of Americaʼs successor in interest as the beneficial owner of the Hansen deed of trust, and that the HOA

sale was unfair to Nationstar because Red Rock had rejected the 5/8/13 tender of $825.

Nationstar continued to spew the fiction that the HOA sale was valid to extinguish the property interest of the Borrowerʼ s 
estate, but not to extinguish Nationstarʼs non-existent interest.

The Court granted NSMs 2/12/19 Limited JJoinder to the HOAʼ s Motion for summary judgment based on the 

courtʼ s belief, based on no evidence, that NSM was Bank of Americas successor in interest as the beneficial owner of the 

Hansen deed of trust.
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DEL WEBB
COMMUNITIES
INC

NONE SHOWN 200307310004441 NOTICE Completion
7/31/2003
2:08:59
PM

191-
13-811-
052

DEL WEBB
COMMUNITIES
INC

HANSEN,
GORDON B

200307310004442 DEED
7/31/2003
2:08:59
PM

191-
13-811-
052

388311.0000

HANSEN,
MARILYN I

HANSEN,
GORDON B

200307310004443 POWER OF ATTORNEY
7/31/2003
2:08:59
PM

191-
13-811-
052

HANSEN,
GORDON B

CITY FIRST
MORTGAGE
SERVICES LLC

200307310004444 DEED OF TRUST
7/31/2003
2:08:59
PM

191-
13-811-
052

CITY FIRST
MORTGAGE
SERVICES LLC

WASHINGTON
MUTUAL BANK
FA

200309100000588 DEED OF TRUST Assign
9/10/2003
8:43:04
AM

191-
13-811-
052

HANSEN,
GORDON B

WELLS FARGO
BANK NA

200311200004030 DEED OF TRUST
11/20/2003
5:00:00
PM

191-
13-811-
052

HANSEN,
GORDON B

HANSEN,
GORDON B

200406110005547 DEED
6/11/2004
3:45:35
PM

191-
13-811-
052

HANSEN,
GORDON B

WESTERN
THRIFT &
LOAN

200407220003507 DEED OF TRUST
7/22/2004
1:32:20
PM

191-
13-811-
052

AMERICAN
SECURITIES
COMPANY OF
NEVADA

HANSEN,
GORDON B

200408170002284 RECONVEYANCE
8/17/2004
12:10:47
PM

191-
13-811-
052

CALIFORNIA
RECONVEYANCE
COMPANY

HANSEN,
GORDON B

200408310007563 SUBSTITUTION/RECONVEYANCE
8/31/2004
5:34:48
PM

191-
13-811-
052

HANSEN,
GORDON

200409010007297 HOMESTEAD
9/1/2004
7:17:10
PM

191-
13-811-
052

HANSEN,
GORDON B

WELLS FARGO
BANK NA

200705100001127 DEED OF TRUST
5/10/2007
10:12:57
AM

191-
13-811-
052

HANSEN,
GORDON B

HANSEN,
GORDON B EE

200808270003627 DEED
8/27/2008
3:28:08
PM

191-
13-811-
052

MORTGAGE
BANK OF
AMERICA NA

201204120001883 ASSIGNMENT
4/12/2012
1:18:35
PM

191-
13-811-
052

0.0000

HANSEN,
GORDON B

SUN CITY
ANTHEM
COMMUNITY
ASSOCIATION

201212140001338 LIEN
12/14/2012
9:37:58
AM

191-
13-811-
052

0.0000

HANSEN,
GORDON B

SUN CITY
ANTHEM
COMMUNITY
ASSOCIATION

201303120000847 DEFAULT
3/12/2013
9:55:30
AM

191-
13-811-
052

0.0000

SUN CITY
ANTHEM
COMMUNITY
ASSOCIATION

HANSEN,
GORDON B

201304030001569 NOTICE RESCISSION
4/3/2013
11:28:14
AM

191-
13-811-
052

0.0000

Nationstar never recorded or disclosed any power of attorney to give it authority to record
any of the 10 documents Nationstar recorded.

EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 008 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0836

javascript:window.print();
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl02$ctl00$RebindGridButton','')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl02$ctl02$ctl01','')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl02$ctl02$ctl02','')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl02$ctl02$ctl03','')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl02$ctl02$ctl04','')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl02$ctl02$ctl05','')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl02$ctl02$ctl06','')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl02$ctl02$ctl07','')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl02$ctl02$ctl08','')
javascript:__doPostBack('ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl02$ctl02$ctl09','')
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl04$FullNameLink", "", true, "", "", false, true))
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl06$FullNameLink", "", true, "", "", false, true))
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl08$FullNameLink", "", true, "", "", false, true))
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl10$FullNameLink", "", true, "", "", false, true))
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl12$FullNameLink", "", true, "", "", false, true))
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl14$FullNameLink", "", true, "", "", false, true))
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl16$FullNameLink", "", true, "", "", false, true))
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl18$FullNameLink", "", true, "", "", false, true))
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl20$FullNameLink", "", true, "", "", false, true))
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl22$FullNameLink", "", true, "", "", false, true))
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl24$FullNameLink", "", true, "", "", false, true))
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl26$FullNameLink", "", true, "", "", false, true))
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl28$FullNameLink", "", true, "", "", false, true))
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl30$FullNameLink", "", true, "", "", false, true))
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl32$FullNameLink", "", true, "", "", false, true))
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl34$FullNameLink", "", true, "", "", false, true))
javascript:WebForm_DoPostBackWithOptions(new WebForm_PostBackOptions("ctl00$ContentPlaceHolder1$RadGrid3$ctl00$ctl36$FullNameLink", "", true, "", "", false, true))


4/25/2020 Records Search & Order System

https://recorder.co.clark.nv.us/RecorderEcommerce/ 2/4

Refresh   |   

First Party
Name

First Cross
Party Name Instrument # Document Type Modifier Record

Date
Parcel
# Remarks Total

Value

HANSEN,
GORDON B EE

SUN CITY
ANTHEM
COMMUNITY
ASSOCIATION

201304080001087 DEFAULT
4/8/2013
9:51:05
AM

191-
13-811-
052

0.0000

HANSEN
GORDON B
TRUST

HENDERSON
CITY

201309230001369 LIEN
9/23/2013
10:39:05
AM

191-
13-811-
052

0.0000

HANSEN,
GORDON B EE

RED ROCK
FINANCIAL
SERVICES

201402120001527 NOTICE SALE
2/12/2014
9:06:29
AM

191-
13-811-
052

0.0000

HANSEN
GORDON B
TRUST

REPUBLIC
SILVER STATE
DISPOSAL INC

201405060004357 LIEN
5/6/2014
2:30:41
PM

191-
13-811-
052

0.0000

SUN CITY
ANTHEM
COMMUNITY
ASSOCIATION

OPPORTUNITY
HOMES LLC

201408220002548 DEED
8/22/2014
9:53:30
AM

191-
13-811-
052

353529.0000

BANK OF
AMERICA NA

WELLS FARGO
BANK
NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION

201409090000974 ASSIGNMENT
9/9/2014
11:08:50
AM

191-
13-811-
052

0.0000

BANK OF
AMERICA NA

NATIONSTAR
MORTGAGE
LLC

201412010000518 ASSIGNMENT
12/1/2014
9:00:43
AM

191-
13-811-
052

0.0000

MORTGAGE
ELECTRONIC
REGISTRATION
SYSTEMS INC

NATIONSTAR
MORTGAGE
LLC

201501220001850 REQUEST NOTICE
1/22/2015
9:10:12
AM

191-
13-811-
052

0.0000

RED ROCK
FINANCIAL
SERVICES

OPPORUNITY
HOMES LLC

201502230000608 RPTT REFUND
2/23/2015
11:17:34
AM

191-
13-811-
052

0.0000

WELLS FARGO
BANK NA

HANSEN,
GORDON B

201503120002285 SUBSTITUTION/RECONVEYANCE
3/12/2015
12:11:44
PM

191-
13-811-
052

0.0000

OPPORTUNITY
HOMES LLC

F BONDURANT
LLC

201506090001537 DEED
6/9/2015
12:58:36
PM

191-
13-811-
052

270000.0000

F BONDURANT
LLC

STOKES, JOEL
A EE

201506090001545 DEED
6/9/2015
1:06:29
PM

191-
13-811-
052

270000.0000

WELLS FARGO
BANK
NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION

FIRST
AMERICAN
TRUSTEE
SERVICING
SOLUTIONS
LLC

201508170001056 SUBSTITUTION TRUSTEE
8/17/2015
9:48:58
AM

191-
13-811-
052

0.0000

BANK OF
AMERICA NA

STOKES, JOEL
A EE

201512010003402 JUDGMENT DEFAULT
12/1/2015
12:44:42
PM

191-
13-811-
052

0.0000

OPPORTUNITY
HOMES LLC

NATIONSTAR
MORTGAGE
LLC

201601130001051 LIS PENDENS
1/13/2016
11:42:18
AM

191-
13-811-
052

0.0000

TOBIN, NONA
GORDON B
HANSEN
TRUST

201605230001416 CERTIFICATE
5/23/2016
1:09:56
PM

191-
13-811-
052

0.0000

GORDON B
HANSEN TRUST

GORDON B
HANSEN
TRUST

201605230001417 REQUEST NOTICE
5/23/2016
1:09:56
PM

191-
13-811-
052

STAMP IN
MARGIN

0.0000

BANK OF
AMERICA NA NA

STOKES, JOEL
A EE

201606070001450 LIS PENDENS
6/7/2016
11:58:50
AM

191-
13-811-
052

0.0000

GORDON B
HANSEN TRUST

TOBIN, NONA 201703280001452 DEED
3/28/2017
11:51:02
AM

191-
13-811-
052

0.0000
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Date
Parcel
# Remarks Total

Value

REPUBLIC
SILVER STATE
DISPOSAL INC

HANSEN
GORDON B
TRUST

201703300003859 LIEN RELEASE
3/30/2017
3:52:07
PM

191-
13-811-
052

 0.0000

REPUBLIC
SILVER STATE
DISPOSAL INC

HANSEN
GORDON B
TRUST

201703300003860 LIEN RELEASE
3/30/2017
3:52:07
PM

191-
13-811-
052

 0.0000

BANK OF
AMERICA NA

STOKES, JOEL
A EE

201703310003071 INTEREST  
3/31/2017
2:07:50
PM

191-
13-811-
052

 0.0000

BANK OF
AMERICA NA

STOKES, JOEL
A EE

201703310003072 INTEREST  
3/31/2017
2:07:50
PM

191-
13-811-
052

 0.0000

BANK OF
AMERICA NA ET
AL

STOKES, JOEL
A EE

201703310003073 INTEREST  
3/31/2017
2:07:50
PM

191-
13-811-
052

 0.0000

BANK OF
AMERICA NA

NATIONSTAR
MORTGAGE
LLC

201903080002789 ASSIGNMENT RESCISSION
3/8/2019
2:12:46
PM

191-
13-811-
052

 0.0000

WELLS FARGO
BANK
NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION

NATIONSTAR
MORTGAGE
LLC

201903080002790 ASSIGNMENT  
3/8/2019
2:12:46
PM

191-
13-811-
052

 0.0000

STOKES, JOEL A
EE

STOKES, JOEL
A

201905010003348 DEED  
5/1/2019
4:12:04
PM

191-
13-811-
052

 0.0000

BANK OF
AMERICA NA

STOKES, JOEL
A EE

201905060001022 LIS PENDENS  
5/6/2019
8:20:44
AM

191-
13-811-
052

 0.0000

STOKES, JOEL A
CIVIC
FINANCIAL
SERVICES LLC

201905230003531 DEED OF TRUST AGREE
5/23/2019
3:10:20
PM

191-
13-811-
052

 0.0000

STOKES, JOEL A
EE

BANKOF
AMERICA NA

201905280002843 LIS PENDENS RELEASE
5/28/2019
5:44:38
PM

191-
13-811-
052

 0.0000

NATIONSTAR
MORTGAGE LLC

B, GORDON 201906030001599 SUBSTITUTION/RECONVEYANCE  
6/3/2019
11:17:45
AM

191-
13-811-
052

 0.0000

CIVIC
FINANCIAL
SERVICES LLC

HMC ASSETS
LLC EE

201906040000772 ASSIGNMENT  
6/4/2019
8:06:33
AM

191-
13-811-
052

 0.0000

NATIONSTAR
MORTGAGE LLC

OPPORTUNITY
HOMES LLC

201907100002352 LIS PENDENS RELEASE
7/10/2019
2:50:46
PM

191-
13-811-
052

 0.0000

STOKES, JOEL A

MORGAN
STANLEY
MORTGAGE
CAPITAL
HOLDINGS
LLC

201907170002971 ASSIGNMENT  
7/17/2019
2:30:29
PM

191-
13-811-
052

 0.0000

STOKES, JOEL A
EE

TOBIN, NONA
EE

201907240003355 JUDGMENT  
7/24/2019
3:33:28
PM

191-
13-811-
052

 0.0000

STOKES, JOEL A TOBIN, NONA 201908080002097 LIS PENDENS  
8/8/2019
4:00:40
PM

191-
13-811-
052

 0.0000

STOKES, JOEL A
EE

TOBIN, NONA
EE

201908140003083 LIS PENDENS  
8/14/2019
3:16:12
PM

191-
13-811-
052

 0.0000

STOKES, JOEL A TOBIN, NONA 201908140003084 LIS PENDENS  
8/14/2019
3:16:12
PM

191-
13-811-
052

 0.0000

BANK OF
AMERICA NA

STOKES, JOEL
EE

201912030003152 NOTICE ORDER
12/3/2019
3:57:40
PM

191-
13-811-
052

 0.0000
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STOKES,
SANDRA F

STOKES, JOEL
A

201912270001344 DEED  
12/27/2019
1:16:50
PM

191-
13-811-
052

 0.0000

STOKES, JOEL A CHIESI, BRIAN 201912270001345 DEED  
12/27/2019
1:16:50
PM

191-
13-811-
052

 505000.0000

CHIESI, BRIAN
QUICKEN
LOANS INC

201912270001346 DEED OF TRUST  
12/27/2019
1:16:50
PM

191-
13-811-
052

 0.0000

MORGAN
STANLEY
MORTGAGE
CAPITAL
HOLDINGS LLC

FIRST
AMERICAN
TITLE
INSURANCE
COMPANY

202002060000198 SUBSTITUTION TRUSTEE
2/6/2020
8:00:36
AM

191-
13-811-
052

 0.0000

FIRST
AMERICAN
TITLE
INSURANCE
COMPANY

STOKES, JOEL
A

202002060000199 RECONVEYANCE  
2/6/2020
8:00:36
AM

191-
13-811-
052

 0.0000
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 Description: Clark,NV Document-Year.Date.DocID 2014.1201.518 Page: 1 of 2

 Order: 2763 White Sage Comment: 

does not affirm that the statements made are true, correct or with authority

no disclosed power of attorney from BANA gave NSM the authority to execute this

BANA had no interest to assign

No considertion was given because NSM did this on its own, not BANA.

BANA had no interest

EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 012 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0840



 Description: Clark,NV Document-Year.Date.DocID 2014.1201.518 Page: 2 of 2

 Order: 2763 White Sage Comment: 

NSM does not have BANA power of attorney
BANA did not have any interest to assign

NSM employee, I think, from Texas

Asst Secretary is the title used when  a servicer is using one of its employees to execute an assignment 
from MERS, that holds the beneficial interest as the nominee of the lender.  It doesn't make sense if they 

are pretending BANA is making the assignment.

Texas requires a notary journal like Nevada. Nebraska does not ( I called the Nebraska secretary of state.)

See NSM's 2/21/19 and 2/28/19 RESPS to ROGs. NSM refused to provide any info, and then rescinded

this 12/1/14 claim on 2/25/19, recorded 3/8/19, 
one week after the end of discovery..

EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 013 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0841



NSM's 1/22/15 Request for Notice does not reflect
NSM's 12/1/14 recorded claim that NSM owned 
the DOT.

EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 014 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0842



 Description: Clark,NV Document-Year.Date.DocID 2015.817.1056 Page: 1 of 2

 Order: 2763 White Sage Comment: 

This was executed when NSM had a recorded claim , rescinded on 
3/8/19, that it was the beneficial owner of the DOT. 

the undersigned is Wells Fargo
but executed by NSM as if it had Wells Fargo's undisclosed power of attorney

There is no reason given for substituting the trustee, and i argue that NSM had no authority to execute 
this.

NSM's false claim to own the DOT was recorded on 12/1/14, over three 
months after the DOT was extinguished by the 8/15/14 sale

Wells Fargo's interest in the DOT was allegedly created by the assignment of BANA's interest recorded on 
9/9/14. First, BANA had no interest to assign in 2014 as BANA's only recorded claim was by an invalid 
4/12/12 recorded assignment for which no notary record of its execution exists. Second, 9/9/14 is nearly a 
month after the 8/15/14 sale extinguished the DOT.

NSM did not file a lawsuit to void the sale that extinguished the DOT until four months after filing this 
substitution of trustee. Their motives are clearly not pure.

A substitution of trustee under a trust deed is a legal document that allows 
the mortgage lender to change the person or business entity that will carry 
out the private trustee's foreclosure sale. A substitution of trustee is a legal 
document that provides public notice regarding a foreclosure.

A Substitution of Trustee form is often filed when a loan on real property is paid off 
or refinanced. Why did NSM record this when nothing was reconveyed?

EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 015 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0843



 Description: Clark,NV Document-Year.Date.DocID 2015.817.1056 Page: 2 of 2

 Order: 2763 White Sage Comment: 

Wells Fargo is signatory even though NSM's 12/1/14 
claim made NSM the holder of record

NSM 270-272 disclosed a Wells Fargo 
power of attorney which was inapplicable to 
this instrument or to this DOT

EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 016 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0844



re A-16-730078-C

NSM filed NSM vs. Opportunity Homes LLC on 1/11/16 when opportunity Homes 
LLC had no recorded interest after 6/9/15.

EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 017 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0845



EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 018 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0846



EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 019 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0847



EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 020 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0848



EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 021 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0849



NSM recorded this Lis Pendens when it was granted the right to intervene into A-15-720032

by NEO 6/7/16 ORDER

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1LDdPBpZQt0grSo_NFXMB28JPAoMAw48c/view?usp=sharing

Jimijack never recorded a LISP for A-15-720032-C On 5/28/19 Joel & Sandra Stokes 
recorded a release of NSM's 6/7/16 
LISP.

EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 022 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0850



EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 023 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0851
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EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 025 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0853



EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 026 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0854



NSM rescinded its only recorded claim to own the DOT one week after 
discovery ended and after refusing to produce proof the it owned the 
DOT. See 2/21/19 and 2/28 NSM RESP to ROGs and RFDs

12/1/14 assignment was executed by NSM as if it held BANA's undisclosed power of 
attorney, but forgot to mention that here.

EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 027 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0855



EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 028 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0856



EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 029 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0857



NSM claims authority on an undisclosed power of
attorney to execute

assignment of WELLS Fargo's nonexistent interest
to itself. 

Self-dealing fraud

Recorded one week after end of discovery. See 
NSM's 2/21/19 and 2/28/19  RESPS to ROGs RFDs.
NSM270-272 WF power of attorney is not applicable 
to this DOT or any assignment.

BANA had no interest to assign to Wells Fargo on 9/9/14 so WF had 
no interest to assign to NSM.

EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 030 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0858



What is Mohamed V-P of? It is the same signature
when NSM was pretending it had BANA's power 
of attorney. No witness this time. No disclaimer of 
the notary's role as there should have been.

No disclosed power of attorney

EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 031 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0859



Substitution and Reconveyance is done when the debt is paid , refinanced or cancelled 

FALSE!

NSM already recorded a fraudulent Sub of trustee on 8/17/15

Mr. Cooper is neither the present beneficiary nor did Mr. Cooper have any legal authority to substitute itself as the new 
trustee. If it were, NRS 107.028(2) prohibits serving both as the beneficiary and as the trustee, 

NRS107.028 (2).  A trustee under a deed of trust must not be the beneficiary of the deed of trust for the purposes of 
exercising the power of sale pursuant to NRS 107.080.

EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 032 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0860



EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 033 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0861



EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 034 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0862



NSM released its 1/13/16 LISP in case A-16-730078-C here on 7/10/19.
NSM' never released the Lis Pendens NSM recorded on 6/7/16. 

The Stokes released the NSM 6/7/16 Lis Pendens on 5/28/19, a 
week before the trial and five days after joel Stokes recorded a 
$355,000 encumbrance by his personal loan from Civic Financial.

EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 035 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0863



EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 036 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0864



EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 037 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0865



 Description: Clark,NV Document-Year.Date.DocID 2014.1201.518 Page: 1 of 2

 Order: 2763 White Sage Comment: 

does not affirm that the statements made are true, correct or with authority

no disclosed power of attorney from BANA gave NSM the authority to execute this

BANA had no interest to assign

No considertion was given because NSM did this on its own, not BANA.

BANA had no interest

EX 13 RECORDED FRAUD 038 BY NATIONSTARTOBIN. 0866



 Description: Clark,NV Document-Year.Date.DocID 2014.1201.518 Page: 2 of 2

 Order: 2763 White Sage Comment: 

NSM does not have BANA power of attorney
BANA did not have any interest to assign

NSM employee, I think, from Texas

Asst Secretary is the title used when  a servicer is using one of its employees to execute an assignment 
from MERS, that holds the beneficial interest as the nominee of the lender.  It doesn't make sense if they 

are pretending BANA is making the assignment.

Texas requires a notary journal like Nevada. Nebraska does not ( I called the Nebraska secretary of state.)

See NSM's 2/21/19 and 2/28/19 RESPS to ROGs. NSM refused to provide any info, and then rescinded

this 12/1/14 claim on 2/25/19, recorded 3/8/19, 
one week after the end of discovery..
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NSM's 1/22/15 Request for Notice does not reflect
NSM's 12/1/14 recorded claim that NSM owned 
the DOT.
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 Description: Clark,NV Document-Year.Date.DocID 2015.817.1056 Page: 1 of 2

 Order: 2763 White Sage Comment: 

This was executed when NSM had a recorded claim , rescinded on 
3/8/19, that it was the beneficial owner of the DOT. 

the undersigned is Wells Fargo
but executed by NSM as if it had Wells Fargo's undisclosed power of attorney

There is no reason given for substituting the trustee, and i argue that NSM had no authority to execute 
this.

NSM's false claim to own the DOT was recorded on 12/1/14, over three 
months after the DOT was extinguished by the 8/15/14 sale

Wells Fargo's interest in the DOT was allegedly created by the assignment of BANA's interest recorded on 
9/9/14. First, BANA had no interest to assign in 2014 as BANA's only recorded claim was by an invalid 
4/12/12 recorded assignment for which no notary record of its execution exists. Second, 9/9/14 is nearly a 
month after the 8/15/14 sale extinguished the DOT.

NSM did not file a lawsuit to void the sale that extinguished the DOT until four months after filing this 
substitution of trustee. Their motives are clearly not pure.

A substitution of trustee under a trust deed is a legal document that allows 
the mortgage lender to change the person or business entity that will carry 
out the private trustee's foreclosure sale. A substitution of trustee is a legal 
document that provides public notice regarding a foreclosure.

A Substitution of Trustee form is often filed when a loan on real property is paid off 
or refinanced. Why did NSM record this when nothing was reconveyed?
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 Description: Clark,NV Document-Year.Date.DocID 2015.817.1056 Page: 2 of 2

 Order: 2763 White Sage Comment: 

Wells Fargo is signatory even though NSM's 12/1/14 
claim made NSM the holder of record

NSM 270-272 disclosed a Wells Fargo 
power of attorney which was inapplicable to 
this instrument or to this DOT
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NSM rescinded its only recorded claim to own the DOT one week after 
discovery ended and after refusing to produce proof the it owned the 
DOT. See 2/21/19 and 2/28 NSM RESP to ROGs and RFDs

12/1/14 assignment was executed by NSM as if it held BANA's undisclosed power of 
attorney, but forgot to mention that here.
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NSM executed the rescission as if it held BANA's undisclosed power of attorney

No verification of the truthfulness, accuracy or validity of the document

Strange signature
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NSM claims authority on an undisclosed power of
attorney to execute

assignment of WELLS Fargo's nonexistent interest
to itself. 

Self-dealing fraud

Recorded one week after end of discovery. See 
NSM's 2/21/19 and 2/28/19  RESPS to ROGs RFDs.
NSM270-272 WF power of attorney is not applicable 
to this DOT or any assignment.

BANA had no interest to assign to Wells Fargo on 9/9/14 so WF had 
no interest to assign to NSM.
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What is Mohamed V-P of? It is the same signature
when NSM was pretending it had BANA's power 
of attorney. No witness this time. No disclaimer of 
the notary's role as there should have been.

No disclosed power of attorney
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Substitution and Reconveyance is done when the debt is paid , refinanced or cancelled 

FALSE!

NSM already recorded a fraudulent Sub of trustee on 8/17/15

Mr. Cooper is neither the present beneficiary nor did Mr. Cooper have any legal authority to substitute itself as the new 
trustee. If it were, NRS 107.028(2) prohibits serving both as the beneficiary and as the trustee, 

NRS107.028 (2).  A trustee under a deed of trust must not be the beneficiary of the deed of trust for the purposes of 
exercising the power of sale pursuant to NRS 107.080.

Asaessor'sffax ID No, 191-13-811-052 

Recording Requested By: 
NATIONSTAR MORTOAOE LLC DBA MR. COOPBR 

When R.ocorded Return To: 
NA TIONST AR MORTGAGE DBA MR. COOPER 
RELEASES 
P.O. BOX 619092 
DALLAS. TX 75261-9947 

lnat#: 20190603-0001599 
Feet: Mil.DD 
06/03/2019 11:11:4G AM 
Rec:ltlpt #: 37.269.a 
Raqu111tor: 
AKERMAN, LLP, LASVE(lA.S 
Recorded By: 08A Pgt: 3 
DEBBIE CONWAY 
CLARK COUNTY RECORDER 
.Sn:: ERECORO 
Ofc: ERECORD 

IIWIUlllllllllllllffiH 
SUBSTITUTION OF TRUSTEE AND FULL RECONVEYANQi 

NATIONSTARMORTOAOB#:061831S261 "HANSEN'' Lend«ID:CBA Clark, Nevada 
MIN#: 1000S2SS00185232S7 SIS#: 1-888-679.Q77 

THE UNDERSIGNED DOES HEREBY AFFIRM THAT 11:US DOCUMENT SUBMITI'ED 
FOR RECORDTNO DOES NOT CONTAIN PERSONAL INFORMATION ABOUT ANY 
PERSON. 

NATIONSTAR MORTOAOE LLC, D/B/A MR.COOPER is the present Bencfaciaryofthat 
certain OIied of Trust Dated: 07/15/2004 • made by GORDON B. HANSEN, AN UNMARRIED 
MAN as Trustor, with JOAN H, ANDERSON. as Trustee, for the benefit ofMORTOAGE 
ELECTRONIC REGISTRATION SYSTEMS, INC. AS NOMINEE FOR WESTERN THRIFT & 
LOAN. as OrigJnal BcnefK:iary, which said Deed of Trust was recorded 07/2212004 in the Office 
of the County Recorder of Clark Srate of Nevada, as Instrument No.: 20040722-00035D7 wherein 
said present Benefioiary hereby substitutes NATIONSTAR MORTOAOB U.C D/B/A 
MR.COOPER as Trustee in Heu of the above-named Trusreo under said Deed ofTrust. 

Property Address: 2763 WI-IlTB SAGE DR, HENDEllSON, NV 890S2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, NATIONSTAR MORTGAGE LLC, D/B/A MR.COOPER. 
8950 CYPRESS WATERS BLVD, COPPELL, TX 75019 as present Beneficiaiy and 
NATIONSTARMORTGAGELLC D/B/A MR..COOPBR 8950 CYPRESS WATBRS BLVD, 
COPPELL, TX 75019 as Substituted Trustee, have caused this instrume!l1t to be executod, each in 
its respective interest; 

"ATR*ATRNATT"05/03/2019 07:46:31 AM* NATf01 NA TT0000000000000001940192• 
NVCLARK" 0618315261 NVCLARK_ TRUST_SUB .. •ATRNATT*' 
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Mr Cooper was not the beneficiary and was not a party to the consolidated cases.

Mr Cooper was not a party to the 
Jimijack-Nationstar settlement, 
recorded on 5/23/19 

two days before the trial

 The trustee on this date 
was First American 
Trustee Servicing 
Solutions, LLC, based in 
Westlake Texas, that 
NSM, acting on Wells 
Fargo's undisclosed 
power of attorney, 
substituted for Joan H 
Anderson
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SUBSTITUTION OF TRUSTEE ANO FULL RECONVEYANCE Page 2 of 3 

NATIONSTAR MORTGAGE LLC, D/B/A MR.COOPBR 
On May 3rd, 2019 

STA TH OF Texas 
COUNTY OF Dalla.1 

On May 3rd, 2019. before me, DANIELA HORVATH. a Notary Pub& in and for Dallas in the 
State of Texas. personally appeared Sylvia Ramirez, Vice-President. penonally known to me (or 
proved to me oo. die basis of satisfacto,y evldenoe) to be the person(s) whoso ~11) ls./are 
sub.wibed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that be/she/they executed the same In 
hi!llber/thelr authorized capacity, and that by hWher/thelr signllttn on the instrument the 
person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which theperson(s) aot.ed, executed the instrument. 

officia I seal, 

VATH 
Notary Expires: 01/2712020 #128862890 

(Thi11 area fur 1101arlal seal) 

NATIONSTAR MORTGAGE lLC D/13/A MR.COOPER hereby acccpta said appointment as 
Trustee under said Deed of Trust and as Successor Trw.tee pursuant to the request of said present 
Ben.eficial'y lllld In acoordWlOO with the provisions of said Deed of Trust does hetoby reconvey 
without W1UTanl}' to the person or pmons legally entitled thereto all estate now held by it under 
said Deed of Trust. 

By NA TIONST AR MORTGAGE LLC D/B/A l\1R.COOPER as: TJUsteo 
On MI.Y 3rd, 20 19 

NT SECRETARY 

•ATR•ATRNATT"05/031201907:45:33AM"NATT01NATTOOOOOD0000000001840192'" 
NVCLAR!(" 0018315261 NVCLARK_TRUST_SUB * *ATRNATT" 
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Nationstar didn't fake having Wells Fargo's power of attorney like 
on 8/17/15 and on 2/25/19, recorded on 3/8/19,.

Nationstar disclosed on 2//27/19 page 7 in its supplemental response to 
my interrogatories that it was the servicing bank since 12/1/13 acting for 
Wells Fargo, two days after Mohamed Hameed, claiming to be Wells 
Fargo V-P assigned the hansen DOT to Nationstar.

This is NSM's sneaky, fraudulent way to remove the lien of the disputed Hansen 
DOT by reconveying it to Joel Stokes instead of the estate of Gordon Hansen

This is grand larceny in my book in addition to 
violating NRS 205.330, NRS 205.395, NRS 205.377, 
NRS 207.360(9), (18), (30) and NRS 207.400, and I 
request that these fraudulent claims be investigated 
and prosecuted criminally.
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SUBSTITUTION OF TRUSTEE AND FULL RECONVEYANCE Page 3or3 

STATE OF Texas 
COUNTY OP Dallas 

On Mlly 3rd, 2019, before me.DANIELA HORVATH. aNota,yPublio In and for Dallas in the 
State of Texas, personally appeared Sylvia Ramirez, ASSISTANT SECRETARY, personally 
known to me (or proved to mo on thD baBls of satisfactory evldeoes) to be the pei'SOll(s) whose 
name(s) is/an, subscribed to tbe within instrument and acknowledged to me that be/she/they 
cxocutod the same in his/herldieir authom.ed capacity, and that by hWher/their slgn.atul'e on the 
instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf ofwhloh the person(s) acted, executed the 
instrument 

TH 
• 121n.020 #128862890 

~v~-.. DANIELA HORVAT\f 
j~)-"1::.~\ N<Jary P\lblic, State of Toxn 
;.\\°J\\'}j,i Comm. EJcpfree 01•27•2020 
~,or~~ Notary 10 128B62890 

'IHI"" 

(This area for notarial seal) 

Mail Tax Statements To: CORDON HANSEN, 2763 WHITE SAGE DR, HBNDBRSON, NV 
89052 

•AtR•ATRNA TT*0510312019 07:45:35 AM., NATT01 NA TTOOOOOOD000000001940192" 
NVCLARK*OB18315261 NVCLARK_TRUST_SUB **ATRNATT* 
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EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS 
Rule 2.9. Ex Parte Communications 
Rule 2.2. Impartiality and Fairness 

Rule 2.4. External Influences on Judicial Conduct 
Rule 2.6. Ensuring the Right to Be Heard 

Rule 2.7. Responsibility to Decide 
Rule 1.2. Promoting Confidence in the Judiciary 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
In 2016 I filed an affidavit stating that I had evidence that neither Nationstar nor Jimijack had 
standing to be in the case. Nationstar’s claims to be the beneficial owner of the Hansen deed of 
trust were provably false by the evidence I possessed. Jimijack did not have an admissible deed. 
The ex parte meeting obstructed judicial scrutiny of my evidence and adjudication of my claims. 
 

 

EX PARTE 001 KISHNERTOBIN. 0892



 
 
 
2/12/19 Nationstar filed a duplicitous joinder to the HOA’s motion for summary judgment 
against the Hansen Trust (but not vs. me as an individual) 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Nationstar is duplicitous because: 
1. There was no subpriority portion of the 

lien in May 2013 when Miles Bauer 
tendered $825 as only nine months were 
then delinquent. 

2. Nationstar had refused in 2018 to join me 
in a motion for summary judgment to 
void the sale in its entirety that would 
have allowed us both to regain title rights 
lost by the defective HOA foreclosure. 
Therefore, filing this joinder had no 
proper purpose. It was intended to evade 
detection that it had no standing to 
foreclose by suppressing my evidence 
and obstructing my case.  

3. The sworn affidavit that I put into the 
court record in 2016 stated that 
Nationstar’s claim to be the beneficial 
owner of the Hansen deed of trust was 
refuted by evidence I possess. 

4. Nationstar rescinded its 12/1/14 claim to 
be B of A’s successor in interest on 
2/25/19, but did not disclose it until 
3/12/19, two weeks after the end of 
discovery. 

5. Nationstar never filed any claims against 
me or the Hansen Trust, and this joinder 
is solely to a partial MSJ against the 
Hansen Trust’s quiet title claim. 

6. Nationstar’s 3/21/19 MSJ vs. Jimijack 
contains provably false claims. 
Nationstar did not file it against either me 
or against the Hansen Trust in an obvious 
attempt to suppress evidence. 

7. The PUD Rider says delinquent HOA 
dues tendered by a lender are added to 
the loan balance with interest unless the 
borrower agrees otherwise. 
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3/18/19 NITD  Nationstar filed a three-day notice to take default against Jimijack 
 
 

 
 
Nationstar could have taken default anytime over nearly three years,  for Jimijack’s not 
answering Nationstar’s 6/2/16 AACC answer, affirmative defenses and counterclaims vs. 
Jimijack, but a Jimijack default would not have accomplished Nationstar’s corrupt 
purpose. 
  
Preventing the HOA sale from being voided in its entirety and title going to me was 
necessary because Nationstar knew I knew it did not have standing to foreclose, and knew I 
could prove it. 
 
Nationstar’s participation in the HOA foreclosure quiet title action was for the sole 
purpose of circumventing the NRS 107 foreclosure requirements that it knew it could not 
circumvent if it tried to foreclose on me.   
 
The Akerman attorneys in this case have successfully perpetrated this fraud on other 
courts representing other corrupt lenders, e.g., A-14- 710161-C and “We can learn a lot 
from this Spanish Trail HOA case”On 3/21/19 without waiting for a response from 
Jimijack, the only party in default, Nationstar filed a motion for summary judgment for 
quiet title against only Jimijack and unilaterally dismissed its only valid claim (unjust 
enrichment) against Jimijack despite the fact the Jimijack had never paid on the disputed 
Hansen deed of trust (in default since 2011) or property taxes while collecting rent for over 
four years. Nationstar admitted in discovery it had paid over $47,000 that Jimijack, the 
party in possession should have paid. Nationstar had no unjust enrichment claim against 
me or the Hansen Trust and did not name either me individually or the Hansen Trust in its 

EX PARTE 003 KISHNERTOBIN. 0894



3/21/19 MSJ for quiet title. Page 2-3 shows Nationstar was aware of, and was attempting to 
evade the court’s detection of, its fraudulent claims.  
 
 

 
 
 
 

1st #5.  
“outside the chain of title”  is 
Nationstar’s fraudulent 
misrepresentation of its 
fraudulent 12/1/14 recorded 
claim that Nationstar had Bank 
of America’s power of 
attorney to execute an 
assignment of B of A’s interest 
to Nationstar. 
 
2nd #5 Nationstar does not 
disclose that also on 3/8/19 
Nationstar’s agent Mohammed 
Hameed acting as B of A V-P 
rescinded its 12/1/14 claim 
immediately before Mohamed, 
acting as Wells Fargo V-P, 
with no power of attorney, 
assigned Wells Fargo’s non-
existent interest to Nationstar.   
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Why I fired my attorney and filed Pro Se motions for summary judgment against Nationstar 
and Jimijack 
 
Judge Kishner’s ruled at the 3/26/19 hearing that the HOA’s motion and Nationstar’s joinder 
thereto were granted without either the MSJ or the joinder being supported by any verified, 
corroborated documentary evidence and no consideration of documentary evidence filed in 
opposition. 
 
3/26/19 minutes   3/26/19 transcript  3/26/19 video  4/17/19 order (NEO 4/18/19) 
 
 
I was furious with my attorney for not filing my counter motion for summary judgment when I left 
for vacation the day after the hearing. 
 
 
 
April 10, 2019 
I filed my opposition and motions for summary judgment from Hawaii where I was on 
vacation from 3/27/19 to 4/16/19. 
 
 
On 4/10/19 OPPC I filed a 22-page opposition that included a motion for summary judgment 
against Jimijack (pages 11-22), supported by declarations under penalty of perjury 
supported by documentary evidence (pages 23-97), my 3/14/19 verified complaint against 
Nationstar to the Nevada Attorney General (pages 99-130) and a draft motion for summary 
judgment against all parties (pages 230-245) (MSJ vs. all and supporting evidence were on 
pages 131-229) that my counsel of record had failed to file for Judge Kishner’s consideration 
at the 3/26/19 hearing that allowed Judge Kishner to cross-defendant HOA’s motion for 
summary judgment and Nationstar’s deceptive joinder thereto without looking at the 
evidence. 
 
 
Pages 1-2 4/10/19 OPPC 
I requested that my opposition and motion for summary judgment be heard in conjunction 
with Nationstar’s MSJ on 4/23/19.  
I accused Nationstar of fraud and Jimijack of not having an admissible deed. 
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Pages 11-12 – 1st two pages of incorrectly formatted motion for summary judgment vs. 
Jimijack.  
I explained why my deed as an individual was superior to Jimijack’s inadmissible deed. 
 
4/10/19 MSJ and DECLs vs. Jimijack was supported by declarations under penalty of perjury and 
documentary evidence. 
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4/10/19 Pro Se OPPC MSJ vs all Pages 99-131 includes the all the supporting documentation 
for the motion for summary judgment against all parties I had drafted after Judge Kishner’s 
3/5/19 minute order to grant the HOA’s motion for summary judgment and Nationstar’s 
joinder thereto, but in time for consideration at the 3/26/19 hearing, but which my counsel 
of record chose not to file. 
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Only March 22, 2019 Clerk’s Notice of Hearing 
April 23, 2019 hearing of was scheduled by the clerk on 3/22/19 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Judge Kishner’s April 12, 2019 ex parte order to continue 4/23/19 hearing to 5/7/19 
 
April 12, 2019 Judge Kishner signed an ex parte stipulation and order signed by Melanie Morgan 
and Joseph Hong that neither I nor my counsel Joe Coppedge was notified about). Judge Kishner 
signed the order to continue the hearing from 4/23/19 to 5/7/19 and to require Hong to file any 
opposition to Nationstar’s motion for summary judgment against Jimijack by 4/26/19. 
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April 12, 2019 
 
Nationstar served notice of settlement of Nationstar’s claims against Jimijack instead of 
taking default against Jimijack who had no filed claims against Nationstar, was in default 
since 2016, and who never filed an opposition to Nationstar’s unheard 3/21/19 motion for 
summary judgment 
 
This is the only notice I received of this fraudulent “settlement”. 
 

 
 
April 15, 2019 and April 22, 2019 Hong notices 
 
 
Joseph Hong served two notices that the 4/23/19 hearing was continued by the 4/12/19 order. 
 
Hong served two notices through the court system that the hearing scheduled by the Clerk on 
3/22/19 was continued. 
 

EX PARTE 011 KISHNERTOBIN. 0902



  
 
4/15/19 SAO Hong & Morgan stipulation and order to continue hearing to 5/7/19 
4/22/19 NTSO Notice of entry of order to continue hearing and required opposition filed by 
4/26/19 
 
 
When I returned from Hawaii I contacted the Clerk of the Court and requested that the 5/7/19 
hearing be moved because I was scheduled to be out of the country from 5/2/19-5/9/19. She 
informed me that I was no longer a party because the judge had granted the HOA MSJ. 
 
 On 4/16/19, I wrote an email to my attorney ordering him to withdraw  
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EX PARTE 014 KISHNERTOBIN. 0905
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On 4/17/19 (RPLY) I filed a reply in support of what I then knew was a joinder to Nationstar’s 
motion for summary judgment, not an opposition and countermotion as I had erroneously labeled 
it. Since I believed the hearing had been continued to 5/7/19 when I could not attend, I requested 
that the hearing on my motion for summary judgment be heard on 4/25/19 along with the pre-trial 
conference. I requested that the court suspend entering the MSJ while she considered all the 
evidence “and not unfairly prevent Tobin’s case from being heard on its merits.” 
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Pages 3-4  
I told Judge Kishner that a fraud was being perpetrated on the court because she wasn’t properly 
weighing the evidence. She might not have liked that or she might not have even read it.  
 
Either way she never looked at the evidence and she never fairly adjudicated my claims on their 
merits. 
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The 4/17/19 filing included 600 pages of exhibits.  
Below are screenshots of the 12-page table of contents. Judge Kishner declared all of this 
“rogue” at the 4/23/19 ex parte hearing.   
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On 4/19/19 Nationstar filed a “Response”, not opposition on the merits, to my Pro Se filed 
documents claiming that Nationstar did not have to file an opposition because there were no filed 
claims against Nationstar. “No claims exist upon which summary judgment can be considered.” 
 
Judge Kishner declared that my motions, oppositions and notices could all be stricken from the 
record based on the misrepresentations of opposing counsels without appeal, but she did not strike 
their  
 
She also ignored all this evidence when it was incorporated into the 5/23/19 Reply in support of 
the motion for reconsideration filed by the attorney she wouldn’t let me fire because it also 
contained my signature in addition to the attorney’s signature. 
 
 

EX PARTE 021 KISHNERTOBIN. 0912



 
 
Judge Kishner allowed Nationstar’s disingenuous 4/19/19 RESP non-opposition-opposition to 
remain in the court record, apparently without seeing the logical flaw of keeping it while striking 
sua sponte from the record all the filings Nationstar was responding to.  
 
Jimijack never filed any claims against Nationstar to “settle” and Jimijack was the only party in 
default.  Nationstar did not file any claims against me as an individual or against the HOA or 
against the Hansen Trust. In fact, there were no filed claims against Nationstar.  
 
Further, given that the HOA was only a cross-defendant with no claim for the title adverse to mine, 
and I had no claims against the HOA for damages. “No claims exist upon which summary judgment 
can be considered.” And yet Judge Kishner did grant summary judgment to the HOA and granted 
Nationstar’s joinder against the Hansen Trust when  “No claims exist upon which summary 
judgment can be considered.” 
 

EX PARTE 022 KISHNERTOBIN. 0913



 
 
 
 
Nationstar’s sleight of hand distracted Judge Kishner from her duty under NRS 30.030 to provide 
declaratory relief against parties who had asserted adverse claims to title based on requiring each 
party to prove their claims 
 

"We first hold that each party in a quiet title action has the burden of demonstrating superior title 
in himself or herself." 

 
While the "burden of proof [in a quiet title action] rests with the plaintiff to prove good title in 
himself," Breliant v. Preferred Equities Corp., 112 Nev. 663, 669, 918 P.2d 314, 318 (1996), 
abrogated on other grounds by Delgado v. Am. Family Ins. Grp., 125 Nev. 564, 570, 217 P.3d 
563, 567 (2009), "a plaintiff's right to relief [ultimately] . . . depends on superiority of title," W. 
Sunset 2050 Tr. v. Nationstar Mortg., LLC, 134 Nev., Adv. Op. 47, 420 P.3d 1032, 1034 (2018) 
(internal quotation marks omitted). 

 
And because "[a] plea to quiet title does not require any particular elements, . . each party must 
plead and prove his or her own claim to the property in question." Chapman v. Deutsche Bank 
Nat'l Tr. Co., 129 Nev. 314, 318, 302 P.3d 1103, 1106 (2013) (internal quotation marks omitted)." 

 
Res. Grp., LLC v. Nev. Ass'n Servs., Inc., 437 P.3d 154 (Nev. 2019) 
 
 
Magically, without notice, at some unknown time, by some unknown hand, the 4/23/19 
hearing comes back on the Register of Actions 
 

 

“in the interest of 
judicial economy” 
 
Really? That’s why 
Nationstar needn’t 
address any of my 
evidence 
substantively? 

According to the court 
record, my opposition and 
countermotion was docketed 
for 4/23/19 with no clerk’s 
notice of hearing, and the 
matter was heard without me 
knowing about it and without 
the opposition and 
countermotion that was filed 
being in the record or ordered 
stricken. Nationstar’s 4/19/19 
response to the nonexistent 
opposition is in the record. 
4/23/19 transcript shows 
Judge Kishner allowed it 
because Nationstar was just 
explaining the facts to the 
judge. EX PARTE 023 KISHNERTOBIN. 0914



 
 
 
 
No Clerk’s notice of any 4/23/19 hearing after Judge Kishner’s 4/12/19 order continued it to 
5/7/19. 
There was no Clerk’s notice of hearing served for my 4/10/19 OPPC opposition to Nationstar’s 
motion for summary judgment and my countermotion for summary judgment against Jimijack (I 
erroneously entitled it an OPPC instead of a JMOT. To no avail, I corrected my error on my 4/17/19 
Reply), but that was also stricken unheard. 
 
Clark County is hounding me for a $200 filing fee for the 4/10/19 stricken-unheard OPPC 
The Register of Actions inaccurately states that my motion for summary judgment was heard on 
4/23/19. 
 

 
 
The Register of Actions also says I owe $200 from 4/10/19, and it will take a court order to 
cancel it 
 

 
 
I assume this $200 is for the stricken, unheard motion for summary judgment as the stricken notices 
of appearance were filed on 4/9/19 and 4/12/19. 
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On 2/1/17 IAFD, I filed a filed an initial appearance as a Pro Se and paid a $223 filing fee.  
 
In April  2019 when I attempted to return to my Pro Se status, I did not know that the court had to 
approve the counsel of record’s motion to withdraw, before I could fire the attorney for Nona 
Tobin, an individual. 
 

  

I appeared as a Pro Se for 
Nona Tobin, an individual, 
on 2/1/17. Joe Coppedge 
appeared as counsel of record 
on 5/24/17. Judge Kishner 
struck my 4/9/19 notice of 
appearance (and the 4/12/19 
duplicate erroneously filed) 
by bench order at the 4/23/19 
ex parte hearing based on the 
fraudulent misrepresentations 
of opposing counsels.  
Judge Kishner repeatedly 
compounded her error by 
refusing to allow me to 
represent myself, striking my 
motions from the record 
unheard, obstructing my 
access to appeal or to pursue 
quiet title claim in another 
district court, and expunging 
my Lis Pendens related to 
proceedings not in her court. 
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April 23, 2019 ex-parte hearing  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Judge Kishner specifically postponed starting the unnoticed hearing Hong showed up for in 
order to have her clerk contact Dept. 16 to find out when Melanie Morgan was going to show 
up.  
 
Page 2 
THE COURT: So do we know -- what's -- would you 
10 mind sending an e-mail to Department 16 to see if Ms. Morgan, 
11 her timing on this one? 
 
When Morgan appeared, Judge Kishner stated she left the unnoticed hearing on the calendar to 
“find out what’s going on in this case” 
 
 
Page 2-3 4/23/19 RTRAN 
MR. HONG: Yes, Your Honor. Joseph Hong for Joe 
11 Stokes and the JimiJack Trust. 
12 MS. MORGAN: Melanie Morgan for Nationstar. 
13 THE COURT: Okay. I just want to make sure. Is Ms. 
14 Tobin here at all? 
15 MR. HONG: She is not. 
16 THE COURT: Is counsel for Ms. Tobin here? 
17 MR. HONG: She's in pro per person, Your Honor. 
18 THE COURT: Well, actually, that's an interesting 
19 question. I heard you say that but, counsel, that's not what 
20 the record shows and that's the reason why the Court's about 
21 to say something. 
22 MR. HONG: Oh, okay. 
23 THE COURT: So feel free to sit down, if you wish, 
24 or stand up, whatever is more comfortable for you. 
25 So here's what the Court -- the Court left on 
Page 3 
1 today's hearing for the mere purpose -- the Court needed to 
2 find out what was going on in this case -- 
 
Judge Kishner proceeded with an unnoticed hearing about my opposition in my absence 
without questioning why neither my counsel nor I wasn’t there  when she apparently had an 
inkling of the lack of notice. 
 
Page 4 4/23/19 RTRAN 
COURT: But, so today technically was -- shows a Tobin 
18 Opposition to Nationstar Motion for Summary Judgment against 
19 JimiJack and Countermotion for Summary Judgment. This got a 

4/23/19 minutes 
Recorder's Transcript of Hearing: All Pending Motions April 23, 2019 
29-minute video of 4/23/19 ex parte hearing closed captioned 
1-minute video What exactly did Judge Kishner know? 
4/23/19 annotated hearing transcript 
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20 Clerk's -- wait, did somebody take them off for today? 
21 Samantha, can you see? Because somehow somebody 
22 messed with my -- okay, so anyway, today was showing a Tobin 
23 Opposition to Nationstar Motion for Summary Judgment against 
24 JimiJack and a Countermotion. 
 
Judge Kishner erred by meeting ex parte and relying on the misrepresentations of opposing 
counsels to strike all my Pro Se motions and evidence rather than just canceling the hearing and 
complying with Rule 11(a)  
 
 “The court must strike an unsigned paper unless the omission is promptly corrected after being called to 
the attorney’s or party’s attention.” 
 
 

 
 
 
List of my Pro Se filings that Judge Kishner declared stricken sua sponte by bench orders 
at the 4/23/19 hearing without notice to me or my attorney or the NRCP 11(a) opportunity 
for Joe to promptly correct the problem by signing the documents. 
 
4/9/19 Tobin/Hansen Trust Notice of completion of mediation Neither Jimijack nor Nationstar  nor 
Jimijack nor Lee submitted any filed claims to mediation and so Judge Kishner lacked jurisdiction under NRS 
38.310(2) to provide them declaratory relief against parties (me and the Hansen Trust that were compliant. 
1.  
2. 4/9/19Tobin Notice of appearance to return to Pro Se status 
3. 4/10/19 Tobin Opposition to Nationstar's motion for summary judgment against Jimijack and 

countermotion for summary judgment 
4. 4/12/19 19 Tobin notice of appearance to return to Pro Se status as an individual (duplicate 

filed in error) 
5. 4/12/19 Tobin/Hansen Trust Notice of completion of mediation (duplicate filed in error) 
6. 4/12/19 Tobin OPPC vs Nationstar and Jimijack (duplicate filed in error) 
7. 4/17/19 Tobin reply to support joinder to Nationstar motion for summary judgment 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4/23/19 minutes 
Recorder's Transcript of Hearing: All Pending Motions April 23, 2019 
29-minute video of 4/23/19 ex parte hearing closed captioned 
1-minute video What exactly did Judge Kishner know? 
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Joseph Hong and Melanie Morgan mischaracterized my standing, their clients’ standing, 
the fact, the evidence, and the court record to obstruct my evidence from being heard.  I’m 
filing this complaint against the judge because she was a full party to the improper 
conduct.  She let them tell her what to do because she didn’t understand. 
 
The court caused, or allowed, fraudulent misrepresentations to be made ex parte by 
opposing counsels Hong and Morgan, and then relied on those statement to unfairly 
deprive me of my rights without an opportunity to be heard. 
 

 
 
 
Note that Judge Kishner sua sponte granted the HOA motion for summary judgment on 
3/5/19 after ignoring the opposition and declaration u 
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Page 1 
BEFORE THE HONORABLE JOANNA S. KISHNER, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 
TUESDAY, APRIL 23, 2019 
RECORDER'S TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING: 
ALL PENDING MOTIONS 
APPEARANCES: 
FOR THE PLAINTIFF: JOSEPH Y. HONG, ESQ. 
FOR THE COUNTER CLAIMANT MELANIE D. MORGAN, ESQ. 
NATIONSTAR MORTGAGE, LLC: 
FOR COUNTER CLAIMANT NO APPEARANCE 
NONA TOBIN: 
RECORDED BY: SANDRA HARRELL, COURT RECORDER 
TRANSCRIBED BY: VERBATIM DIGITAL REPORTING, LLC 
Page 2  
LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, TUESDAY, APRIL 23, 2019 
2 (Case called at 9:53 A.M.) 
3 THE COURT: -- 32. 
4 MR. HONG: Good morning, Your Honor. Joseph Hong 
5 for Joel Stokes. Ms. Morgan is in Department 16. But I 
6 believe this is the one where a stip -- 
7 THE COURT: Just -- just one second. 
8 MR. HONG: Yeah. 
9 THE COURT: So do we know -- what's -- would you 
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10 mind sending an e-mail to Department 16 to see if Ms. Morgan, 
11 her timing on this one? 
12 THE CLERK: Yes. 
13 THE COURT: Because I might call the other matter 
14 and recall you in a moment because I'm aware of what you may 
15 be saying but I want to make sure I have a full -- 
16 MR. HONG: Yeah, yeah. 
17 THE COURT: -- opportunity to have -- make -- 
18 MR. HONG: Sure, sure. 
19 THE COURT: -- sure if there's anybody else here on 
20 the case, so let's find out. 
21 MR. HONG: Okay, okay. 
22 THE COURT: Because she did file a pleading. I did 
23 not see one for you. So let's wait one moment. I want to see 
24 what her timing is and then we'll see, because maybe I can 
25 call page two in the intervening time. 
 
Page 6  Hong’s statements are refuted by the minutes of the 12/20/16 hearing 
See 12/20/16 annotated transcript 

 
MR. HONG: Right.  So, Mr. Mushkin's office 
2 represents Tobin as the Trustee for the Hansen Trust. Because 
3 what happened was, when Ms. Tobin came into this case 
4 originally in pro per person, Your Honor, we were at this 
5 hearing and said, you don't have standing, because -- 
6 THE COURT: Correct. 
7 MR. HONG: -- you're not the Trustee. So that's 
8 when she then came in as the Trustee and Mr. Mushkin 
9 represented her. 
10 Now, she has no standing in this case, because as an 
11 individual, Ms. Tobin individually has nothing to do with this 
12 case. 
13 THE COURT: Which is why the Court was understanding 
14 as Mr. Mushkin would only have the role as her counsel. The 
15 Court didn't see that Ms. Tobin has any pro per person status 
16 in this -- 
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17 MR. HONG: Right. 
18 THE COURT: -- case. 
19 MR. HONG: And -- and Mr. Mushkin represents Tobin 
20 as the Trustee of the Trust, not individually. 
21 THE COURT: Correct. Okay. 
 
 
 
 
 
Hong’s false statement is refuted by the 5/24/17 Notice of Appearance 
 

 
 
 
Hong’s statements and the court’s misunderstandings are also refuted by the Court’s 4/27/17 denial of the 
HOA’s motion to dismiss me as an individual 
 
See pages 3-13 of the 4/27/17 RTRAN annotated. 
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22 MR. HONG: So what happened -- this is what counsel 
23 and I are gathering -- what happened was, when Your Honor 
24 granted the HOA's Motion for Summary Judgment against the 
25 Estate, the Trust -- the Trust, that was over. They were 
Page 7  
done. And so what -- what Ms. Tobin did then, she tried to go 
2 do an end-around and file this Opposition Countermotion in pro 
3 per person individually. 
4 So again, long story short, she has no standing in 
5 this case, Your Honor. The only party that has standing is 
6 the Trust, because they were theoretically the former owner; 
7 right? They were -- they were the former owner when the 
8 foreclosure happened – 
 
 
These misstatements are refuted in the 4/24/19 MVAC Motion to Vacate that I filed as a Pro Se before I 
found out at the pre-trial hearing on 4/25/19 that Judge Kishner had met on 4/23/19 ex parte with Morgan 
and Hong. 
 
 

Note that attorneys for the 
HOA did not enter Judge 
Kishner’s 9/14/17 order 
regarding its two motions to 
dismiss me as an individual 
and as the trustee – 2/23/17 
MTD per NRS 38.310 and 
3/22/17 MTD per rule 41 for 
being a Pro Se until 9/20/17, 
four months after the hearing 
and a month after the 
attorneys  unlawfully 
removed me from my elected 
HOA board seat for being a 
party to this quiet title 
litigation. 
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Pages 18-29 of the 4/24/19 MVAC includes another motion for summary judgment that Judge Kishner did 
not consider based on the misrepresentations of Hong and Morgan at the 4/23/19 hearing. 
 
Pages 30-72 include documentary evidence to support voiding the HOA sale that judge Kishner did not 
look at. 
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Here is the table of contents of the 4/24/19 motion to vacate and the motion for summary judgment to void 
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Judge Kishner’s meeting ex parte with 
two opposing counsels and allowing to 
define her understanding of my case and 
my standing in my absence and the 
absence of counsel is egregious enough 
on its own, but because of this, I don’t 
believe to Judge Kishner could be fair to 
me as the trustee should the Court of 
appeals remand case 79295 back to the 
district court.  
 
Is there any way to let the Court of 
Appeals know of this so they don’t just 
rule against me on misinformation or 
remand the case back to a judge who has 
allowed opposing counsels to fill her 
head with lies?  
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9 THE COURT: Um-hum. 
10 MR. HONG: -- right. 
11 THE COURT: Right. 
12 MR. HONG: Right. 
13 THE COURT: Which is what -- thank you, I appreciate 
14 where the Court was going because the document I was 
15 referencing, the 4/9/2019 said Defendant in Intervention/Cross 
16 Claimant. There is no Intervenor anywhere in this caption -- 
17 MR. HONG: Yeah. 
18 THE COURT: -- that this Court saw. And I was going 
19 to get clarification from the parties. That's why I needed to 
20 have as many people who were going to be here on this case, to 
21 confirm that that is everybody's understanding. 
22 Is that your understanding? 
23 MR. HONG: Well -- well -- 
24 THE COURT: There's no Intervenor -- 
 
 
 
25 MR. HONG: -- she did intervene in the other case (See transcript 9/29/19 hearing) 

 
 
Page 8  This is refuted by me appearing as Nona Tobin, an individual, in all the proposed pleading attached 
to the 11/15/16 MINV motion to intervene that was granted at the 12/20/16 hearing  (proposed AACC pg 
37; page 63 shows page 2 of proposed CRCM vs the HOA 
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that was consolidated into this case. 
2 THE COURT: But not in an individual capacity. 
3 MR. HONG: No. 
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4 THE COURT: It was in a Trustee of the Trust -- 
5 MR. HONG: Correct. 
6 THE COURT: -- which is the only role that Ms. Tobin 
7 held, not as an individual; is that correct? 
8 MR. HONG: Correct. 
9 MS. MORGAN: Right. 
10 MR. HONG: Correct. 
11 THE COURT: Okay. Well -- okay. 
12 MR. HONG: Well, yeah. 
13 THE COURT: Which is what the Court saw. So -- 
14 MR. HONG: That's absolutely right. 
15 THE COURT: Okay. So -- 
16 MR. HONG: Because title to the property prior to 
17 the foreclosure was in the name of the Trust, not -- 
18 THE COURT: Nina Tobin, Trustee of the Gordon B. 
19 Hansen Trust. 
20 MR. HONG: There you go. 
21 MS. MORGAN: Right. 
22 MR. HONG: That's it. 
23 MS. MORGAN: Right. 
24 MR. HONG: That's it. 
25 THE COURT: That's the only thing that this Court  
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saw. 
2 MR. HONG: That's right. 
3 MS. MORGAN: So a retitling, in portion, of a 
4 caption on a document filed where she made herself an 
5 individual was the first time this Court -- I've spent a long 
6 time looking at this entire case again -- 
7 MR. HONG: Right. 
8 THE COURT: -- no, it's perfectly fine. I'm just -- 
9 MR. HONG: Right. 
10 THE COURT: -- the only time this Court saw Ms. 
11 Tobin in an individual capacity was her placing herself as an 
12 individual on a document that she filed is the way this Court 
13 will phrase it. 
14 MR. HONG: That's -- that's correct. 
15 MS. MORGAN: Right. 
16 THE COURT: I did not see that in any filing by 
17 either A, any other party; or B, any other records. 
18 MR. HONG: Right. 
19 THE COURT: Is that consistent with everybody's 
20 else's understanding? 
21 MR. HONG: That is absolutely correct, Your Honor. 
22 THE COURT: Okay. 
23 MS. MORGAN: Yes. 
24 THE COURT: So here's -- but the Court left today's 
25 hearing on for the purpose of, I need to ensure that every   
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case has -- is correct, and any rogue documents don't exist. 
2 MR. HONG: Right. 
3 THE COURT: I also wanted to ensure that if Ms. 
4 Tobin appeared, or Ms. Tobin's counsel appeared, that 
5 everybody had a full opportunity to be heard. So here's where 
6 the Court sees today's hearing. 
7 The Court sees today hearing is that there is -- 
8 cannot be a inclination that I'm going to let anybody who's 
9 here respond; okay? 
10 Let me see what I've got. I've got a Notice of 
11 Settlement that Nationstar, Joel Stokes and Sandra F. Stokes, 
12 as Trustee of the JimiJack Irrevocable Trust, have reached an 
13 Agreement on all material terms; right? 
14 MR. HONG: Correct. 
15 THE COURT: Does that then moot the 5/7 Motion for 
16 Summary Judgment? 
17 MS. MORGAN: It does. And we were going to withdraw 
18 that motion. But then when we saw these filings from Tobin, 
19 we thought it'd be cleaner just to leave it on. 
20 THE COURT: That's why the Court's asking the 
21 question. 
22 Okay. So here's what the Court -- the Court really, 
23 at the end of this morning, sees that there is nothing -- 
24 subject to anybody telling me differently -- the Court sees 
25 that there is nothing from a -- left in this case, now that I 
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have an NEO from Sun City Anthem, left in this case other than 
2 I need to do a Status Check on settlement documents between 
3 the parties who filed the Notice of Settlement on 4/12. 
4 MR. HONG: That's correct. 
5 MS. MORGAN: Well -- 
6 THE COURT: Is there anything else left? 
7 MS. MORGAN: -- I'm showing that -- 
8 THE COURT: Can you walk through your caption? 
9 MS. MORGAN: -- Nona Tobin, an individual Trustee of 
10 the Trust, still has claims against JimiJack. 
11 MR. HONG: That's -- yeah, that -- that is true. 
12 THE COURT: Wait. Nona Tobin, the Trustee, against 
13 JimiJack. So that is left for trial. 
14 MR. HONG: Okay. But if I may, Your Honor -- 
15 THE COURT: Hold -- hold on just a sec. 
16 MR. HONG: Yeah, yeah. 
17 THE COURT: Okay. No, that's -- thank you for that 
18 point of clarification. 
19 MR. HONG: Right. 
20 THE COURT: So that was not -- because there's been 
21 no -- but in that capacity that would be Mr. Mushkin as 
22 counsel for the Trustee -- 
23 MR. HONG: Correct. 
24 THE COURT: -- and Mr. Hong as counsel for JimiJack; 
25 correct? 
 
Page 12  

Judge Kishner clearly understands 
that she is supposed to give 
everybody an equal opportunity to 
be heard.  
 
She understood that she wasn’t 
supposed to “let anybody who’s 
here respond”, but that’s exactly 
what she did for a half hour. 
 
She believed the hearing was 
supposed to be about my 
opposition to Nationstar’s motion 
for summary judgment and my 
own motion for summary 
judgment. Setting aside for a 
moment that it was unnoticed, 
Judge Kishner should not have 
addressed anything else, let alone 
substantive issues that determined 
the outcome of my case without 
me or my attorney present.  
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MR. HONG: Correct. 
2 THE COURT: Is that -- 
3 MR. HONG: Correct. 
4 THE COURT: Okay. So -- 
5 MR. HONG: And on that one, Your Honor, if that's 
6 the only thing left, if that is -- and if they are actually 
7 going to pursue that, based on this Court's previous Order for 
8 Summary Judgment in favor of Opportunity homes, who was the 
9 buyer, we would ask leave just to clean it up, because there's 
10 no reason to go to trial if we can just do a simple motion 
11 mirroring the Court's order, like a res judicata. 
12 Because Opportunity Homes -- the claims alleged 
13 against my clients by the Trust are identical to the claims 
14 that were alleged against Opportunity Homes. 
15 THE COURT: You can appreciate the Court cannot 
16 grant any orally when I do not have a noticed hearing that 
17 doesn't have -- 
18 MR. HONG: Oh, no, no. 
19 THE COURT: -- all parties -- 
20 MR. HONG: Right, right. 
21 THE COURT: -- the Court takes no position on 
22 anything. I can't address anything that's -- 
23 MR. HONG: Right. 
24 THE COURT: -- not before me today -- 
25 MR. HONG: Right. 
 
Page 13 THE COURT: -- because I don't have all parties 
2 here. 
3 MR. HONG: Right, right. 
4 THE COURT: Okay. 
5 MR. HONG: But we would ask a leave in a written 
6 sense to file a written motion. 
7 THE COURT: The Court can't -- 
8 MR. HONG: Okay, right, right. Okay. 
9 THE COURT: -- address anything that's not 
10 specifically -- 
11 MR. HONG: Right. 
12 THE COURT: -- before it. 
13 MR. HONG: Sure. 
14 THE COURT: Particularly, when dates and deadlines 
15 and everything -- 
16 MR. HONG: Sure. 
17 THE COURT: -- have passed. 
18 MR. HONG: Sure. 
19 THE COURT: The Court was only asking for a point of 
20 clarification so that we ensure -- 
21 MR. HONG: Okay. 
22 THE COURT: -- that we have a clear -- 
23 MR. HONG: Right. 
24 THE COURT: -- record. So let's do today's 
25 purposes. Today's purpose, to the extent that there is an 
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Opposition to Nationstar's Motion for Summary Judgment, I'm 
2 going to put that placeholder for two seconds. I'm dealing 
3 with the second portion. 

Judge Kishner should have 
known what she was 
addressing plenty of things that 
weren’t docketed. 

Res Judicata is Hong’s way of 
suppressing judicial scrutiny of 
evidence. This ploy was 
successful in case A-19-
799890-C so that because of 
joseph Hong’s continually 
lying to the court’s I have been 
forced to appeal in cases 82094 
vs Hong, 82234 vs. 
Chiesi/Quicken and an 
unnumbered 12/30/20 appeal 
vs Red Rock et al 
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4 There is a Countermotion -- okay, first off -- let 
5 me go back to the pleading. I'm sorry. I need to go to the 
6 specific pleading. 
7 First off, the Court is going to find that there is 
8 a rogue document filed which is a Notice of Appearance on 
9 4/9/2019, of Nona Tobin, in pro per person, because there is 
10 nothing in this case that shows Ms. Tobin has any individual 
11 capacity. 
12 MR. HONG: That's right. 
13 THE COURT: There's been no leave sought for Ms. 
14 Tobin to have any individual capacity. The only portion of 
15 this case in which there is Ms. Tobin in any capacity is as 
16 Trustee of the Gordon B. Hansen Trust, dated 8/22/2008. 
17 MR. HONG: That's correct. 
18 THE COURT: And in that capacity, Ms. Tobin is 
19 represented by counsel. 
20 MR. HONG: That's correct. 
21 THE COURT: That counsel has not filed any Motion to 
22 Withdraw, is the simplest way of phrasing it. So any 
23 pleadings on behalf of Ms. Tobin, as Trustee for the Gordon B. 
24 Hansen Trust, need to be filed on behalf of counsel. There is 
25 no Ms. Tobin in an individual capacity. 
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The Notice of Appearance of April 9th, 2019, 
2 therefore, is -- must be viewed as a rogue document, and must 
3 be stricken because there is nothing with Ms. Tobin in pro per 
4 person. 
5 Madam Clerk, please see that that gets stricken. 
6 Okay. Next document. While the Court did see on 
7 that same date, there was a Notice of Completion of Mediation 
8 also filed by Ms. Tobin in her individual capacity, the Court 
9 already had a prior document with regards to the mediation 
10 being completed, since that also was filed by Ms. Tobin 
11 individually, and not by Ms. Tobin's counsel, who is the only 
12 party who can file on behalf of Ms. Tobin as Trustee for the 
13 Gordon B. Hansen Trust, the Court was inclined to strike that 
14 Notice of Completion of Mediation also filed on April 9th, 
15 2019. Does anyone disagree? 
16 MR. HONG: No. 
17 MS. MORGAN: No. 
18 MR. HONG: No. 
19 THE COURT: I probably should have phrased that -- 
20 does anyone have -- I have a double negative there -- does 
21 anyone feel that that document should remain on the docket? 
22 MS. MORGAN: No. 
23 THE COURT: Okay. So since that document also was 
24 filed by Ms. Tobin improperly, because Ms. Tobin is not a 
25 party to this case, Ms. Tobin is represented in her Trustee 
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capacity, which is the only capacity in which exists in this 
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2 case -- by counsel, she would not have had permission to have 
3 filed a document on her own, the 4/9 Notice of Completion of 
4 Mediation also needs to be stricken. 
5 The Court now goes to the 4/10/2019 document. The 
6 4/10/2019, at 11:17, there was another document filed by Nona 
7 Tobin, individually, not filed by Mr. Mushkin as counsel for 
8 Nona Tobin, as Trustee of the Gordon B. Hansen Trust. That 
9 document was titled, Tobin Opposition to Nationstar Motion for 
10 Summary Judgment against JimiJack and Countermotion Summary 
11 Judgment, Hearing Requested in Conjunction with Hearing for 
12 Nationstar MSJ Scheduled. 
13 When the Court looked at that document there was two 
14 issues. One, the same issue the Court just noted that was 
15 filed by Ms. Tobin, individually, and she is represented by 
16 counsel, and Ms. Tobin in not a Defendant Intervention Cross 
17 Claimant in Pro Per Person, because her only role in this 
18 case, as set forth based on the pleadings, is as Trustee of 
19 the Gordon B. Hansen Trust, and in that capacity, she is 
20 represented by counsel. That counsel has not withdrawn. 
21 So the 4/10/2019 document filed at 11:17, similarly, 
22 would be a rogue document. Does anyone have any position with 
23 regards to that statement? 
24 MR. HONG: No, actually, we -- we agree. 
25 MS. MORGAN: We agree. 
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THE COURT: Okay. So the 4/10/2019, 11:17, also 
2 needs to be stricken. 
3 Now, contained therein, also -- even if the Court 
4 were to look at the underlying arguments, which it can't, but 
5 even independently, the Court's understanding is there is no 
6 claims between Nationstar that currently exists with regards 
7 to Nona Tobin as Trustee of the Gordon Hansen Trust; is that 
8 correct? 
9 MS. MORGAN: That's correct. 
10 THE COURT: So there would be no Opposition that 
11 would be appropriate, even if the Court could look behind the 
12 fact that the document was improperly filed -- is that 
13 correct, counsel -- for Nationstar? 
14 MS. MORGAN: That is correct. 
15 THE COURT: Okay. So there would be no opposition 
16 basis anyway because you aren't on opposite sides of the -- in 
17 any part of this consolidated caption; correct? 
18 MS. MORGAN: That is correct. 
19 THE COURT: Okay. So then the -- 
20 MS. MORGAN: We did file an Opposition just pointing 
21 that out, that we -- that there are no claims. But I 
22 understand that under those -- 
23 THE COURT: You -- actually you filed a very well -- 
24 what was your document titled? You titled your document -- I 
25 think you actually -- yeah, however you titled your document, 
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I you titled it a little bit -- 

Of course, opposing counsel 
would make these self-serving 
misrepresentations to suppress my 
evidence and prevent adjudication 
of my motions for summary 
judgment.  
 
This allowed them to direct the 
court's attention away from the 
fact that neither one of their 
clients had standing to be in the 
case at all and that Judge Kishner 
did not have jurisdiction under 
NRS 38.310(2)  to grant them 
declaratory relief against me. 
 This is complete hogwash. Nationstar 

never filed any claims against me, the 
Hansen Trust or the HOA.  
 
I stated that I wanted to join 
Nationstar to void the sale completely 
and return us to our rights the day 
before the sale. I asked the court not 
to allow Nationstar to abuse the quiet 
title civil action process to create 
rights for itself that did not exist in 
law or in fact. 

Nationstar did not file an opposition to 
my Pro se motion for summary judgment.  
 
On 4/19/19 RESP, it filed a duplicitous 
"Response" to get the court to believe that 
I was not claiming an adverse interest to 
Nationstar and so the court could let 
Nationstar and Jimijack settle out of court 
and just be done with me. 
 
Judge Kishner helped them perpetrate this 
fraud by letting them create an alternate 
reality for her without adjudicating 
anyone’s claims in an evidentiary hearing 
and by removing sua sponte from the 
court record  the verified evidence I filed. 
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2 MR. HONG: Very -- very well. 
3 THE COURT: Huh? 
4 MS. MORGAN: I just -- yes, we filed that recently 
5 just to say there are no claims. 
6 THE COURT: Yeah. So as pointed out by Nationstar, 
7 but I'm just confirming in open court, just so we have it 
8 clean in one place. 
9 MS. MORGAN: Yes. 
10 THE COURT: Okay. So then the second portion was 
11 something that was titled a -- once again, the Court can't 
12 look at this, but I'm just giving you an independent basis 
13 just so it's abundantly clear -- I'm going to the second point 
14 -- it's unclear what portion would be viewed as its own 
15 section as a Countermotion for Summary Judgment. 
16 Because the Court, in looking at this, although -- 
17 and the Court takes -- okay, it says, did not meet the burden 
18 against JimiJack. I mean, it's basically -- I didn't see any 
19 portion that could even arguably be a section, even if the 
20 Court could have looked at the underlying document for 
21 purposes of preparing for today, that could go against -- 
22 well, the Court's just going to leave it at what it is. 
23 Although, it's titled a countermotion, it wouldn't 
24 have been a countermotion because -- I'll phrase it this way. 
25 The Court's going to phrase it -- even to the extent that 
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somehow even though it's titled a countermotion for summary 
2 judgment, it's an improper countermotion, independent of all 
3 the other reasons, because a countermotion has to relate to 
4 the same party and the same claims. 
5 Since it doesn't go against Nationstar, because 
6 Nationstar has no claims with regards to the Tobin as Trustee 
7 for the Gordon B. Hansen Trust dated 8/22/2008, she can't file 
8 a summary judgment against a different party in a different 
9 role in a consolidated case and raise new issues. 
10 So it would not be an appropriate countermotion in 
11 and of itself would be -- to be a separate independent basis, 
12 even if you could view it that way, to the extent that you 
13 could even independently view the underlying motion, which the 
14 Court can't take into consideration anyway, because it's a 
15 rogue document that now has been stricken, it still would be 
16 inappropriate, because even if it appears, even at best, 
17 possibly, or maybe as a Motion for Reconsideration from a 
18 ruling of a year or, I'm not really clear what it is. But 
19 whatever it is, the Court can't consider it, it's not what it 
20 is. So that would be stricken. 
21 Now, then it was filed again on 4/12. On 4/12, 
22 there was also three documents filed. Those same three 
23 documents that were filed on 4/9 were refiled on 4/12: the 
24 Notice of Appearance, the Notice of Completion of Mediation, 
25 and the same Opposition and Countermotion. 
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For the same reasons that the Court just stated, 
2 that the 4/9 documents that were rogue documents, and for the 
3 same analysis on the Opposition and Countermotion, which truly 

Very, very deceptive of Melanie Morgan, given 
that it’s on the record that my effort to void the sale 
was subject to the Hansen deed of trust and further, 
I filed a verified complaint to the Nevada attorney 
general on 3/14/19 accusing Nationstar and 
Jimijack of perpetrating a fraud on the court and I 
believe Melanie Morgan was served that complaint 
on or about 3/15/19.  
 

Judge Kishner believes 
if she makes a 
pronouncement in open 
court based entirely on 
the oral argument of 
one attorney in the 
absence of the affected 
party that it is then an 
evidence-based 
decision. 
 
This is astounding. 
Admittedly, I made a 
formatting error, on 
page 11 of 245 of the 
4/101/9 document, but 
if she read far enough 
to see that i was 
accusing her pals of 
fraud on the court, she 
shouldn't have gone so 
far as to contact 
Morgan in Dept 16 to 
show up for an 
unnoticed hearing and 
the proceed in my 
absence and my 
attorney's absence, to 
get the accused parties 
to help her come up 
with a way to avoid 
looking into the criminl 
accusations against 
them and to avoid  
adjudicating the MSJ 
on the merits. 
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4 isn't an Opposition and Countermotion, those three documents 
5 on 4/12 will be stricken. 
6 Also, for the additional reason that they're 
7 duplicative of the 4/9. But for all the underlying reasons, 
8 for the 4/9, plus the additional ones, that those be stricken. 
9 So then there is the Notice of Settlement, but then 
10 there's a Stipulation and Order to extend a briefing schedule 
11 that was filed after a Notice of Settlement. So now the Court 
12 has to address those between the parties that are before me. 
13 So Notice of Settlement; does that mean that you do 
14 or do not wish, in light of what the Court's ruling is today, 
15 clearing up the record with regards to the rogue documents, I 
16 still have a Notice of Settlement. I have a Stipulation and 
17 Order to extend a briefing schedule. I have a Reply to a 
18 Motion for Summary Judgment and Countermotion for Summary 
19 Judgment. 
20 Oh excuse me, I'm sorry, I just -- strike one more 
21 document. Sorry. On 4/17, Ms. Tobin also filed a document 
22 called a Reply, 4/17, 8:37, saying Tobin's Reply in Support of 
23 Joinder to Nationstar Mortgage's Motion for Summary Judgment, 
24 and Reply in Support of Tobin's Motion for Summary Judgment, 
25 rogue document, and for all the reasons that the Court said 
 
Page 21 
with regards to the 4/9 documents, the 4/12 documents, other 
2 than it's not duplicative because -- so that 4/17 Reply also 
3 would be stricken on 4/17 as well. 
4 So, sorry, and counsel for Nationstar, I knew you 
5 didn't call it a Opposition, you called it a Response. I knew 
6 you -- 
7 MS. MORGAN: Oh. 
8 THE COURT: -- called it something more 
9 appropriately to what it was. 
10 Okay. The Court's not finding it appropriate to 
11 strike the 4/19 Response by Nationstar because that was just a 
12 clarification to enlighten the Court with regards to the 
13 improper filing of documents. The Court did not view that as 
14 viewing on the merits the underlying pleadings filed by Ms. 
15 Tobin, so the Court was not inclined to strike the 4/19, 
16 because it just clarified those underlying documents. 
17 Unless Nationstar was requesting the Court do 
18 something. Is Nationstar requesting the Court do anything? 
19 MS. MORGAN: No, Your Honor. 
20 THE COURT: Okay. So now I have a Stipulation to 
21 Extend Briefing Schedules and a Notice of Settlement, and I 
22 still have a pending Motion for Summary Judgment on May 7th. 
23 Counsel, what would you like to do about those 
24 underlying documents? 
25 MR. HONG: Well, we could withdraw and vacate the 
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Stipulation to Extend the Briefing Schedule because, Your 
2 Honor, that was actually prepared and submitted prior to the 
3 Notice of Settlement. 
4 THE COURT: Not submitted, but yeah. Yeah. 
5 MR. HONG: Was submitted. I mean, so yeah. And by 
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6 the time it got filed we had already settled. 
7 MS. MORGAN: Um-hum. 
8 MR. HONG: So it's moot now. That document is moot. 
9 THE COURT: Okay. So the Court can disregard that 
10 Stipulation and Order on the briefing -- 
11 MR. HONG: Yes. 
12 THE COURT: -- schedule. 
13 MR. HONG: Yes. 
14 THE COURT: So now I still have a pending Motion for 
15 Summary Judgment on 5/7 at 9:30. 
16 MS. MORGAN: Correct. 
17 THE COURT: Is that -- 
18 MR. HONG: Let's vacate it. 
19 THE COURT: -- going to be heard or not heard? 
20 MS. MORGAN: That is not going to be heard. The 
21 only claims involved -- 
22 THE COURT: Are you -- 
23 MS. MORGAN: -- with respect to that motion have 
24 been resolved. 
25 THE COURT: Okay. So are you – 
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MR. HONG: Right. 
2 THE COURT: -- doing it in open court under EDCR 
3 7.50, or are you filing a Notice of Withdrawal just so that in 
4 case anybody else thought that maybe they were showing up on 
5 that particular day -- 
6 MS. MORGAN: I'll file a Notice -- 
7 THE COURT: -- what are you planning to do? 
8 MS. MORGAN: -- a Notice of Withdrawal so that 
9 everybody has something in writing. 
10 THE COURT: Okay. But for today's purposes, would 
11 you like us to vacate it on the system today and then you'll 
12 just file a Notice of Withdrawal -- 
13 MS. MORGAN: Yes, please. 
14 THE COURT: -- or would you like us to leave it on? 
15 MS. MORGAN: Yes. We can -- we can vacate it if 
16 it's okay with you. 
17 THE COURT: Okay. At the request of the movant, and 
18 since the only party which could have filed any pleadings, 
19 you're agreeable to -- 
20 MR. HONG: Oh, yes. Yes, Your Honor. 
21 THE COURT: Okay. Then the 5/7/2019 Motion for 
22 Summary Judgment hearing gets vacated and that gets taken care 
23 of. 
24 Now, I have to leave on the Calendar Call and the 
25 Bench Trial because currently, in the light of everything that 
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everyone's told me -- and here's -- we currently have Nina 
2 Tobin as Trustee for the Gordon B. Hansen Trust versus 
3 JimiJack is the only remaining parties in these combined 
4 cases, 720032, combined with 730078; is that correct? 
5 MS. MORGAN: I think -- 
6 THE COURT: Is there somebody else? 
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7 MS. MORGAN: -- Tobin as Trustee also has pending 
8 claims against Yuen K. Lee and -- 
9 MR. HONG: And -- and F. Bondurant. 
10 MS. MORGAN: -- F. Bondurant, LLC. 
11 MR. HONG: Right. 
12 THE COURT: I do appreciate with that -- thank you 
13 so very much. The Court will make a clarification. So the 
14 only thing remaining in this case then would be Counter 
15 Claimant Nona Tobin as Trustee of the Gordon B. Hansen Trust 
16 dated 8/22/08, Counter Claimant, versus JimiJack Irrevocable 
17 Trust, Yuen Lee and F. Bondurant; okay, and -- 
18 MR. HONG: I represent -- 
19 THE COURT: -- counsel for -- pardon? 
20 MR. HONG: And I represent all three, obviously, 
21 yeah. 
22 THE COURT: And Mr. Hong represents all three of 
23 those defendants. 
24 MR. HONG: Right. 
25 THE COURT: And counsel, for -- when you file your 
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next pleading, please do make sure that you're ensuring your 
2 caption only shows in the Trustee, which is the correct 
3 capacity. 
4 MS. MORGAN: Okay. So take out "an individual"?   
5 THE COURT: We understand that there is no 
6 individual. 
7 MR. HONG: Right. 
8 THE COURT: There's only in the Trustee capacities. 
9 MS. MORGAN: Okay. 
10 THE COURT: Is that correct? 
11 MR. HONG: That's correct. 
12 MS. MORGAN: Yes. 
13 THE COURT: So we just need to make sure our 
14 captions are correct. 
15 MS. MORGAN: Okay. 
16 THE COURT: Right? 
17 MR. HONG: Yes. 
18 THE COURT: So, we just need -- because I had a 
19 couple of different -- so -- and we understand that that was 
20 just a typographical error, is that correct, counsel for 
21 Nationstar? 
22 MR. HONG: No, no -- 
23 MS. MORGAN: I don't really know. I -- 
24 MR. HONG: -- I think what happened is when Ms. 
25 Tobin came into this case, before she got counsel, an 
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individual meant an individual as Trustee, not "individually". 
2 Does that make sense, Your Honor? 
3 She's never been in this case individually. She 
4 can't be. She has no standing. And the Court ruled on that 
5 at previous hearings early on. 
6 THE COURT: Okay. 
7 MR. HONG: And that's -- that's -- yeah. 
8 MS. MORGAN: But this is how -- the way it's 

Judge Kishner 
allowed opposing 
counsels to remove 
me as a party when 
the 3/7/19 SAO 
stipulation and order 
to reform the caption 
did not removed me 
as a party as 
individual nor did the 
3/12/19 ANEO 
amended order to 
reform the caption 

Nothing in the court 
record supports Hong’s  
and Morgan’s fraudulent 
misrepresentations.  
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9 reflected in the caption is how it's reflected in her cross 
10 claim. That's how they worded it. 
11 MR. HONG: Yeah. 
12 THE COURT: I'm not sure if you're reaching out to 
13 counsel for the Trustee, but there's a stipulation heading 
14 this Court's way to ensure that we have -- 
15 MS. MORGAN: We can clarify that. 
16 THE COURT: -- a clarification. 
17 MS. MORGAN: I think? 
18 MR. HONG: Yeah, we can -- 
19 THE COURT: Okay. But we just need to make sure we 
20 have it clear before trial, right? Or anything else. Anyway, 
21 but -- 
22 MR. HONG: Right. 
23 THE COURT: -- but the Court's understanding, since 
24 there is only the Trustee, Mr. Mushkin represents the only 
25 party in that as the cross claimant, and that's the only 
 

 
 
 

There never was a stipulation to remove 
me as an individual party.  
 
The court did not enter an order to 
removed me until 6/24/19 NEFF final 
judgment order after trial and 11/22/19 
post-trial judgment 
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Judge Kishner’s statement “All parties 
having an opportunity to present their 
case and the Court having considered the 
evidence” and footnote are accurate only 
if it is legal for a judge to gift a $500,000 
quiet title to Plaintiffs who had no filed 
claims and no evidence, and without her 
ruling on the admissibility of their deed 
per NRS 111.345, AND it’s legal for that 
judge to meet ex parte with opposing 
counsels to decide among themselves to 
remove me as a party with MANY filed, 
unheard claims that the judge eliminated 
simply by striking them from the record 
unheard. 
 
“All claims by all other parties, other 
than those by the Counterclaimant 
against counter-defendants have either 
been resolved or eliminated due to 
rulings of the Court.” 
 
No evidentiary hearings. See All Minutes 
No documentary evidence allowed at trial 
as a Rule 11 sanction that punished me 
alone. See 6/3/19  
Nona Tobin, an individual, removed as a 
party by bench order on 6/3/19  
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place, in the cross claimant. 
2 Okay. 
3 MR. HONG: Right. 
4 THE COURT: So that is taken care of. So now the 
5 only thing that -- the last thing I need to do is give a 
6 Status Check on Settlement Documents with regards to the two 
7 counsel and the parties they represent, they're standing here 
8 in court today. 
9 MR. HONG: Right. 
10 THE COURT: Since I currently have a Calendar Call 
11 date of 5/21, do you want me to make that your Status Check on 
12 settlement documents since -- 
13 MS. MORGAN: Sure. 
14 MR. HONG: Sure. 
15 THE COURT: -- one of the two of you -- 
16 MR. HONG: Sure. 
17 THE COURT: -- have to be here anyway? 
18 MR. HONG: Sure. 
19 THE COURT: That makes sense? 
20 MR. HONG: That would be fine, Your Honor. 
21 MS. MORGAN: Yes. 
22 THE COURT: Okay. Well, I'll just make your Status 
23 Check on settlement documents that same, 5/21. Oftentimes, I 
24 do it on chambers, but I think this one, you're going to want 
25 it all cleaned up anyway, so – 
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for one, we have to do it for all, and you can -- 
2 MR. HONG: Right. 
3 THE COURT: -- appreciate why we can't do it. Do 
4 you have a co-counsel? You're normally -- 
5 MR. HONG: I don't have a co-counsel, but can I have 
6 a colleague appear on my behalf? I'm not going to be in the 
7 country. That's the problem. 
8 THE COURT: You're not in the country. 
9 MR. HONG: Yeah. 
10 THE COURT: I've got to -- see, the challenge we 
11 have here, you're going to have to put that -- well -- 
12 MR. HONG: I mean, I'll have a colleague here, Your 
13 Honor. 
14 THE COURT: I'm sure that colleague is going to be 
15 your co-counsel for purposes of trial, if this case goes to 
16 trial, right? You're telling me it's your co-trial counsel? 
17 MR. HONG: Sure, sure. 
18 THE COURT: And your -- your -- 
19 MR. HONG: Yes. 
20 THE COURT: -- co-trial counsel is here? 
21 MR. HONG: Yes. 
22 THE COURT: Co-trial counsel is here, fully informed 
23 on what dates this case can go to trial? 
24 MR. HONG: Sure. 
25 THE COURT: That's the requirement. Trial counsel 
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needs to be here. Okay? 
2 MS. MORGAN: All right. 
3 MR. HONG: Can I also -- 
4 THE COURT: And that would include co-trial counsel. 
5 Now, if a second counsel wishes to appear telephonically -- 
6 MR. HONG: Right. 
7 THE COURT: -- as long as co-trial counsel is here 
8 in person -- 
9 MR. HONG: Okay, perfect. 
10 THE COURT: -- then that's -- 
11 MR. HONG: Okay. 
12 THE COURT: -- what it is. 
13 MR. HONG: Okay. 
14 MS. MORGAN: I was just wondering if Nationstar can 
15 be excused from attending the Pretrial Conference on the basis 
16 that we've settled the claims, or if we still need to appear? 
17 THE COURT: Yeah. 
18 MR. HONG: Yeah, that -- sure. 
19 THE COURT: You don't -- well, just a sec. I'm walk 
20 -- let me -- 
21 MS. MORGAN: Oh, sorry. 
22 THE COURT: -- you don't owe me any orders, you 
23 don't -- right? The only thing -- 
24 MS. MORGAN: I -- I owe the Court a notice 
25 withdrawing our Motion for Summary Judgment. 
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Page 31 Judge Kishner dismissed Nationstar from the case without Nationstar ever having presented any 
evidence to prove its claims or any to refute my evidence against it. Judge Kishner did not even look at the 
settlement documents that were obviously fraudulent.  See 5/23/19 recorded “agreement” 
 
THE COURT: So if you have that done on NEO then -- 
2 actually you don't even need an NEO on that because that's 
3 just a Notice of Withdrawal. If you don't have a pending 
4 motion before this Court because you've done a Notice of 
5 Withdrawal, and I think I took care of it today, there's 
6 nothing that you're in this case for any matter, are you? 
7 MS. MORGAN: Just to get the Stip and Order for 
8 Dismissal filed. 
9 THE COURT: But that's just a Notice of Settlement. 
10 MS. MORGAN: Right. 
11 THE COURT: You wouldn't have to show up for a PTC 
12 on that in any event. 
13 MS. MORGAN: No. 
14 THE COURT: No. I don't see any reason -- you're 
15 more than welcome, but I don't see any reason why, from a 
16 standpoint whether or not you want to file that Notice of 
17 Withdrawal beforehand so that you're -- 
18 MS. MORGAN: Okay. 
19 THE COURT: -- might make it clean. But I don't -- 
20 based on what you've represented to this Court, you're not in 
21 any part of this case anymore. 
22 MS. MORGAN: Correct. 
23 THE COURT: And just having a Status Check on 
24 Settlement Documents does not require a person to show up to a 
25 Pretrial Conference, because you have all orders in showing 
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that you're not in this case; right? 
2 MS. MORGAN: Right. 
3 THE COURT: Is that -- yeah, sure. Yeah. 
4 MR. HONG: Yeah. 
5 MS. MORGAN: Okay. 
6 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you so much. 
7 MR. HONG: Yeah. 
8 MS. MORGAN: Thank you. 
9 MR. HONG: Okay. So, Your Honor, my co-counsel -- 
10 THE COURT: Your co-trial counsel -- 
11 MR. HONG: -- will appear. 
12 THE COURT: -- will be here, and if you're 
13 requesting court call, you need to get that in today -- 
14 MR. HONG: Today. 
15 THE COURT: -- so that it can get set up; right? 
16 MR. HONG: Right. 
17 THE COURT: I appreciate it. 
18 MR. HONG: Thank you. 
19 THE COURT: Thank you so very much. 
20 MS. MORGAN: Thank you. 
21 (Hearing concluded at 10:55 A.M.) 
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